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 USD '000  2004 2003 Change

   

 Balance Sheet Data   

 Total Assets 133,466 72,060 85%

 Gross Loan Portfolio 101,492 58,870 72%

  Business Loan Portfolio 94,133 55,650 69%

   USD < 10,000 42,055 19,821 112%

   USD > 10,000 < 50,000 35,931 23,536 53%

   USD > 50,000 < 150,000 12,323 8,394 47%

   USD > 150,000 3,824 3,899 -2%

  Housing Loan Portfolio 2,200 – –

  Other Loan Portfolio 5,159 3,220 60%

  Loan Loss Reserves -2,839 -1,945 46%

  Accrued Interest 1,039 498 109

  Unamortized Loan Origination Fee 1,324 – –

 Net Loan Portfolio 98,368 57,423 71%  

 Customer Funds 35,485 11,558 207%

 Borrowings from Financial Institutions 72,154 43,034 68%

 Shareholders' Equity  16,733 15,125 11%  

 Income Statement      

 Operating Income 12,597 6,020 109%

 Operating Expenses -10,448 -5,307 97%

 Operating Profit Before Tax 2,131 701 204%

 Net Profit  1,529 403 279%  

 Key Ratios      

 Cost/Income Ratio 77% 78%   

 ROE   10% 4%   

 Capital Ratio 15% 24%

 Fixed Assets to Equity 51% 32%   

 Operational Statistics      

 Number of Loans Outstanding 21,976 12,580 75%

 Number of Business Loans Outstanding 20,990 11,427 84%

 Number of Deposit Accounts 25,891 13,266 95%

 Number of Staff 853 457 87%  

 Number of Branches and Outlets 29 19 53%

Key Figures
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 ProCredit Bank Ukraine is a develop-

ment-oriented full-service bank. We offer ex-

cellent customer service and a wide range of 

banking products. In our credit operations, we 

focus on lending to micro, small and medium-

sized enterprises, as we are convinced that 

these businesses create the largest number of 

jobs and make a vital contribution to the econo-

mies in which they operate. Our bank explicitly 

avoids all speculative lines of business and is-

sues large loans only in exceptional cases, 

thus minimising the risk associated with such 

activities.

 Our shareholders expect a sustainable 

return on investment, but are not primarily in-

terested in short-term profi t maximisation. We 

invest extensively in the training of our staff in 

order to create an enjoyable and effi cient work-

ing atmosphere, and to provide the friendliest 

and most competent service possible for our 

customers.

Mission Statement
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 Since its foundation in January 2001, 

ProCredit Bank has made enormous progress 

in turning our long-term vision into reality. Four 

years ago we set out to fill a critical gap in the 

financial sector by catering to the credit needs 

of small businesses in Ukraine, and in the short 

time since then our bank has issued more than 

47,000 business loans totalling USD 250 mil-

lion; the outstanding gross loan portfolio just 

recently passed the USD 100 million mark.

 ProCredit Bank has provided strong 

evidence demonstrating that Ukrainian micro, 

small and medium-sized businesses have an 

effective demand for loans and that they are 

attractive customers for banks from a financial 

point of view. Precisely how impressive that 

evidence has been can be seen from the way in 

which the banking sector has come to view our 

client group. Whereas in the past hardly any 

of the Ukrainian banks showed an interest, in 

2004 even some of the country’s largest com-

mercial banks were making a serious effort to 

serve this segment of the market.

 Given the strong growth in our lending 

activities and the huge size of the Ukrainian 

private enterprise sector, which is still under-

served in many regions, we placed particular 

emphasis during the year on attracting the 

deposits that will be needed to fuel further 

growth.  

Letter from the Supervisory Board
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 Even though the last three months of 

the year were characterised by an upheaval in 

the fi nancial sector owing to political instabil-

ity associated with the presidential elections, 

ProCredit Bank was scarcely affected. 

 As the expansion of our branch network 

continues, human resource management will 

be a major priority this year. Intensive efforts 

will be made to fully integrate the many new 

employees into the corporate culture of Pro-

Credit Bank as quickly as possible, and to pro-

vide ongoing training both for newly hired and 

for more experienced employees, ensuring that 

sound technical skills and a high degree of pro-

fessionalism are fi rmly established at all levels 

of the institution.

 Overall, we expect to look back on 2004 

as a year in which crucial foundations were laid 

for ProCredit Bank’s long-term success, a year 

in which the bank consolidated its reputation 

as a reliable source of support for small busi-

nesses and as a provider of excellent fi nancial 

services to the Ukrainian public. The substan-

tial growth of volumes in all lines of business 

resulted in stable monthly profi ts and an ROE 

of 10% for the year as a whole. Considering the 

labour-intensive nature of the bank’s business 

processes and the comprehensive investments 

in personnel, infrastructure and marketing un-

dertaken during 2004, this was an outstanding 

accomplishment. ProCredit Bank will continue 

to pursue its growth strategy in 2005, never 

forgetting that it owes its success most of all 

to its competent and exceptionally dedicated 

employees.

Dr. Elizabeth Wallace

Chairperson of the Supervisory Board

Members of the 

Supervisory Board as at 

December 31, 2004:

Dr. Elizabeth Wallace

Ms. Helen Alexander

Ms. Doris Koehn

Dr.  Anja Lepp

Mr. Alexander Munteanu

Dr. Elizabeth Wallace

L e t t e r  f r o m t h e  S u p e r v i s o r y  B o a r d 7



Letter from the Management

  In 2004 ProCredit Bank Ukraine 

achieved dynamic growth in all lines of busi-

ness and made significant advances in its insti-

tutional development. The number of deposit 

accounts almost doubled, rising to 25,900, 

while both the volume of outstanding loans 

and the number of borrowers increased by just 

over 70%, bringing the total loan portfolio up to 

USD 101.5 million as of year-end. Five new loca-

tions were added to the branch network, bring-

ing the total to 29; seven representative offices 

were upgraded to full-service branches, six 

additional city branches were established, and 

another three city branches were relocated and 

upgraded. Despite the substantial investments 

in infrastructure, staff and marketing that ac-

companied this expansion, our profit more than 

tripled, rising to USD 1.5 million, which trans-

lates into a return on equity of 10%.

 In line with our major goal for 2004, 

namely to win the confidence of the Ukrai-

nian public, we significantly increased public 

awareness of our bank, and consolidated its 

reputation as a trustworthy, competent and 

reliable provider of financial services. This was 

achieved not only through the improvements 

made to our network, but also by conducting 

focused marketing campaigns combined with 

active public relations work, and, last but not 

least, by launching competitive new deposit 

products, such as the “Ideal-Pro” savings  

account. As a result, our customer deposit base 

grew from USD 11.6 million at the beginning of 

the year to more than USD 35.5 million, and the 

number of term deposit agreements increased 

almost sixfold to 5,770.

 The degree of trust placed in us by our 

clients was most evident in the final quarter 

of 2004. Almost the entire Ukrainian bank-

ing system was seriously affected by early 

withdrawals and the increasing preference of 

many Ukrainians for maintaining cash and sav-

ings in US dollars following the political tur-

moil surrounding the presidential elections. In 

contrast, lending activities at ProCredit Bank 

continued uninterrupted, and the volume of 

term deposits actually increased by USD 5.3 

million during the last quarter. This outstand-

ing stability did not go unnoticed by observers 

of the financial sector: shortly after the poli- 

tical dispute had been resolved, Fitch Ratings 

upgraded ProCredit Bank’s international rating 

to BB- Stable, which is on a par with Ukraine’s 

country rating.

 In our credit operations we were most 

successful in the micro loan segment (loans up 

to USD 10,000), where the bank achieved more 

than half of its net portfolio growth of USD 42.3 

million. The increased demand for our micro 

loans was largely the result of the streamlin-

ing of lending procedures and the easing of 

collateral requirements for very small loans, 

as reflected in particular in the success of the 

Express Loan, with which we were able to set 

new standards in lending to micro enterprises 

in Ukraine.

 We would like to express our grati-

tude to our shareholders, who have continued 

to provide their full support for our growth 

strategy by resolving to capitalise profits and  

provide additional equity in 2005, and by pro-
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viding additional long-term credit facilities. 

Their support was complemented by a USD 10 

million loan from the Overseas Private Invest-

ment Corporation (OPIC), and by the bank’s 

fi rst structured loan (for USD 11 million), which 

was disbursed by EBRD and the International 

Finance Participation Trust (Canada) in Sep-

tember. On the local market, we successfully 

placed a USD 6.5 million corporate bond issue 

denominated in local currency, which helped us 

to increase the UAH share of our loan portfolio 

from 10% to roughly 25% during the year, thus 

effectively eliminating the currency risk from 

many of our loan contracts.

 Our special thanks go to our employees, 

whose professional competence, extraordinary 

dedication and motivation made it possible for 

us to achieve so much in 2004. They embody 

ProCredit Bank’s spirit of friendliness and fair-

ness and give our institution its unique iden-

tity, which we will take great care to preserve 

as we continue to extend our geographical and 

developmental outreach and enhance the qual-

ity of our services in the years to come.

 We would also like to express our sincere 

appreciation of the faith our clients have placed 

in us and the trusting business relationships we 

share with them. Finally, we would like to thank 

all our partners and friends for their invaluable 

support, and in particular the European Union 

and the United States Agency for International 

Development for the technical assistance they 

have provided.

 Dirk Haboeck Olena Malynska 

 General Manager Chief Financial Offi cer

 Dirk Haboeck Olena Malynska 

 General Manager Chief Financial Offi cer

 Dirk Haboeck Olena Malynska 

Sincerely,
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The Bank and its Shareholders

 KfW Entwicklungsbank (KfW Develop-

 ment Bank): On behalf of the German fed-

eral government, KfW Entwicklungsbank fi nances 

investments and accompanying advisory services 

in developing countries. It typically works to-

gether with governmental institutions as well as 

the private sector in the respective countries. Its 

aim is to build up and expand the social and eco-

nomic infrastructure of the countries in which it is 

active, and to create effi cient fi nancial institutions 

while protecting resources and ensuring a healthy 

environment. KfW Entwicklungsbank is a leader in 

the fi eld of microfi nance and is involved in target 

group-oriented fi nancial institutions around the 

world. It is part of KfW Bankengruppe (KfW Bank-

ing Group), which has a balance sheet total of EUR 

335 billion. KfW Bankengruppe is one of the ten 

biggest banks in Germany and is ‘AAA’ rated.

The International Finance Corporation 

(IFC), a multilateral institution, pro-

motes the development of the private sector 

in its developing member countries. A member 

of the World Bank Group, but legally and fi nan-

cially independent, IFC provides long-term loan 

and equity fi nance on market terms in support 

Sector

Banking

Banking

Banking

Investment

Banking

Shareholder  

 

KfW Group

IFC

EBRD

ProCredit Holding

WNISEF

Total Capital

Headquarters

Germany

USA

UK

Germany

USA

Share

20.0%

20.0%

20.0%

20.0%

20.0%

100%

Paid-in Capital 

in USD million

2.9

2.9

2.9

2.9

2.9

14.3

 ProCredit Bank Ukraine started its op-

erations in 2001 under the name “Microfi nance 

Bank”. By creating the bank, its shareholders 

aimed to narrow the gap between the growing 

demand for credit by Ukrainian small business-

es and the limited supply of fi nancial resources 

provided to them by the Ukrainian banking 

sector. Even today, and despite the growing in-

volvement of some major banks in small busi-

ness lending, the enterprises making up the 

SME sector still face substantial problems in 

obtaining fi nancing for investments and their 

day-to-day business activities. And given the 

huge size of this sector, ProCredit Bank sees 

almost unlimited potential to expand its opera-

tions.

 Since its establishment, there have been 

no signifi cant changes in the bank’s share-

holder structure. The shareholders – major

international fi nancial institutions, together 

with ProCredit Holding in the role of strategic 

investor – have repeatedly demonstrated their 

strong commitment to the bank and its mission, 

not least by providing the capital increases nec-

essary to support the strong growth of the insti-

tution. The paid-in capital of the bank amount-

ed to USD 14.3 million by the end of 2004.
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of private sector activities, helps mobilise ad-

ditional fi nancing from other sources and pro-

vides advisory services to both government and 

business. It participates in projects without a 

government guarantee of repayment. During FY 

2004, IFC approved USD 5.6 billion in new loan 

and equity investments supporting projects 

with a total cost of over USD 23.4 billion. Since 

its founding in 1956, IFC has invested almost 

USD 44 billion of its own funds in more than 

3,100 companies in 140 developing countries.

 The European Bank for Reconstruc-

 tion and Development (EBRD) was estab-

lished in 1991. It aims to foster the transition to-

wards open, market-oriented economies and to 

promote private and entrepreneurial initiative in 

the countries of Central and Eastern Europe and 

the Commonwealth of Independent States (CIS) 

committed to democracy, pluralism and mar-

ket economics. The EBRD seeks to help its 27 

countries of operations to implement structural 

and sectoral economic reforms, promoting com-

petition, privatisation and entrepreneurship. In 

fulfi lling its role as a catalyst of change, the 

Bank encourages cofi nancing and foreign direct 

investment from the private and public sectors, 

helps to mobilise domestic capital, and pro-

vides technical cooperation in relevant areas.

 ProCredit Holding AG was founded as 

 Internationale Micro Investitionen AG 

(IMI) in 1998   as an investment company spe-

cialised in equity participations in microfi nance 

banks located in transition and developing 

countries. These microfi nance banks, now col-

lectively known as the ProCredit group, focus 

on providing banking services to people whom 

other banks either do not serve at all (usually 

on the grounds of cost or risk) or only serve in-

adequately. ProCredit Holding is now, or soon 

will be, the majority owner of nearly all of the 

institutions in the ProCredit group, as it is cur-

rently implementing a strategy of purchasing 

from the publicly-owned institutions the shares 

they hold in the individual ProCredit banks. 

ProCredit Holding, working closely with Inter-

nationale Projekt Consult GmbH (IPC), actively 

guides the development of the institutions, tak-

ing responsibility at the corporate governance 

level. The company has so far taken equity 

stakes totalling EUR 53 million in 19 banks and 

fi nancial institutions. Its shareholders are a 

50:50 mix of private and public investors.

Western NIS Enterprise Fund is the 

region’s leading private equity fund in-

vesting in small and medium-sized enterprises 

in Ukraine and Moldova. WNISEF seeks to iden-

tify and invest in securities of private enter-

prises with outstanding growth potential and 

the ability to build competitive advantages in 

the marketplace. WNISEF provides its portfolio 

companies with capital and the necessary man-

agement tools to evolve from entrepreneurial 

ventures into professionally managed compa-

nies. WNISEF’s cumulative investment commit-

ment since inception totals USD 93.4 million; 

it has a stake in 28 companies in Ukraine and 

Moldova employing over 18,000 people.
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ProCredit – An International Group

 ProCredit Bank Ukraine is a member of 

an international group consisting of 19 financial 

institutions operating in as many countries. All 

of these institutions have a similar ownership 

structure and share a common corporate mis-

sion and focus: to provide micro, small and  

medium-sized enterprises with reliable access 

to credit and other banking services. 

 In the countries where the ProCred-

it group has a presence, the conventional 

commercial banks often focus their lending  

operations on corporate finance and consumer 

lending, but tend to neglect small businesses 

as a potential clientele. Their main reasons for 

not lending to micro, small and medium-sized 

enterprises are the perceived inadequacy of 

MSMEs’ accounting methods, the ostensible 

inability of MSMEs to provide sufficient collat-

eral and the high administrative costs incurred 

in small business lending. Yet MSMEs are seen 

by many economists and development experts 

as the main engine of growth and job cre-

ation in developing and transition economies. 

Moreover, in political terms, the middle class 

which emerges when MSMEs grow and flour-

ish usually plays a stabilising role in society. It 

was these insights which prompted the initia-

tors of the ProCredit group to establish target 

group-oriented financial institutions in Eastern  

Europe, Latin America and Africa, a process 

which began six years ago. In the meantime, 

these institutions have grown substantially: 

taken together, the 19 banks and finance com-

panies operate through a total of some 300 

branches and have roughly 7,000 employees.

 The main shareholders of the group's 

institutions are ProCredit Holding, KfW Group, 

IFC, FMO, and the DOEN Foundation. ProCredit 

Holding, which is owned largely by the same 

entities that hold shares in the individual Pro-

Credit institutions, is or soon will be the major-

ity shareholder in the ProCredit institutions. 

ProCredit Holding produces consolidated finan-

cial statements for the group, and has a BBB- 

(investment grade) international rating from 

Fitch Ratings.

 The activities of the group’s member 

institutions are guided and supervised by Pro-

Credit Holding and by IPC, the consulting firm 

which provides management services to the 

banks. Both ProCredit Holding and IPC are lo-

cated in Frankfurt am Main, Germany. This cen-

tralised management and supervision makes 

it possible to achieve synergies which have a 

positive impact in many areas – for example, 

in training, corporate culture and identity, risk 

management, auditing, business policies, and 

funding for lending activities, as well as ethical 

and other professional standards.

 Over the years, the ProCredit group and 

IPC, which developed the lending methodol-

ogy used by the ProCredit group, have gained a 

profound understanding of both the problems 

faced by small businesses and the opportuni-

ties available to them, and have tailored the 

credit technology to reflect the realities of their 

operating environment. Thanks to this credit 

technology, which combines careful analysis of 

all credit risks with a high degree of standar-

disation and efficiency, the ProCredit institu-

tions are able to reach a large number of small 

borrowers: currently they disburse more than 
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40,000 loans totalling more than EUR 100 mil-

lion to small enterprises every month. By the 

end of 2004, the number of loans outstanding 

had grown to more than 420,000 (representing 

EUR 949 million), a 60% increase compared to 

2003. And while the average loan amount out-

standing is just EUR 2,250, the loan portfolio 

quality remains excellent with a ratio of loans in 

arrears (>30 days) to total loan portfolio of only 

1.0%. This demonstrates that small borrowers 

are indeed creditworthy.

 No small business financing operation 

can survive over the long term if it is forced to 

rely on external sources of funds. Accordingly, 

the ProCredit institutions are actively seeking 

The international 

network of ProCredit 

institutions; see also

www.procredit- 

holding.com

to make locally mobilised deposits their main 

means of financing their loan portfolios. In line 

with their development orientation, the net-

work institutions strive to ensure that their de-

posit facilities are appropriate to a broad range 

of customers; in particular, they make their ser-

vices accessible to low income groups by offer-

ing simple savings products with no minimum 

deposit. By placing a higher priority on deposit 

mobilisation in 2004, the ProCredit institutions 

have succeeded in enlarging their combined 

deposit volume to EUR 824 million, compared 

to EUR 552 million at the end of 2003. In addi-

tion to deposit facilities, business clients are 

offered a full range of standard non-credit 

banking services, including domestic and in-

13P r o C r e d i t  –  A n  I n t e r n at i o n a l  G r o u p



ternational transfers, debit and credit cards, 

documentary services and foreign exchange 

operations.

 At the same time, ProCredit institutions 

strive to set new standards in their respective 

banking sectors in terms of transparency and 

business ethics, as well as risk management 

and auditing.  In this way, the group also aims 

to help build public confidence in banks.

 The ProCredit institutions can only be 

successful in their developmental mission if 

their sustainability is assured. Accordingly, 

they have been established as commercial, i.e. 

for-profit, entities. However, the shareholders 

of the group aim to strike a balance between, 

on the one hand, the developmental goals 

which motivated their investment in the Pro-

Credit group, and on the other, the commercial 

success which forms the basis of long-term 

sustainability, and is reflected in an adequate 

return on investment. In 2004, the return on 

equity for the group as a whole, expressed in 

hard currency, after deduction of profit taxes, 

is expected to reach 14%.

 This level of profitability is sufficient to 

ensure the further development of the group. 

By the end of 2009, the group expects to have 

institutions in 22 countries, with the total num-

ber of branches growing to almost 600, the 

number of employees rising to over 13,000, and 

the loan portfolio increasing to EUR 3 billion. To 

achieve the envisaged level of growth, it will be 

necessary to mobilise substantial financial re-

sources. But in itself, access to additional fund-

ing will not be enough: human resource devel-

opment will also continue to be a key priority 

for the group. This will entail not only intensive 

training in technical and management skills at 

the level of the individual institutions, but also 

a continuous exchange of personnel between 

the member institutions, so as to take full ad-

vantage of the opportunities for staff develop-

ment which are created by their membership of 

a truly international group.
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 Since the early 1990s, small businesses 

have become the driving force in Eastern Europe 

with respect to economic growth and job cre-

ation, thus playing a major role in the transition 

process. With many large, state-owned enter-

prises simply disappearing, many people found 

that starting their own business was the only 

available means of earning a living and creating 

a future for their family. One might assume that 

in the meantime the financial services markets 

in these countries would be sufficiently well 

developed to address the demand for loans 

exhibited by small businesses, but the reality 

is somewhat different: Many banks claim that 

they are perfectly willing to serve small busi-

nesses, but in practice they continue to focus 

almost exclusively on more conventional, and 

more familiar, lines of business, such as cor-

porate finance and consumer loans. Thus, the 

growth potential of small businesses is still 

constrained by their limited access to finance.

 The ProCredit group aims to remedy this 

situation. Since 1998 the group has expanded 

its operations to cover 10 countries in the Bal-

kans and the CIS. Nine out of the 10 institutions 

are fully licensed banks offering a wide range 

of financial services to business clients and 

private individuals. With its 185 branches, the 

sheer size of the ProCredit network makes the 

group a major player in the region, and in fact in 

some countries the local ProCredit institution 

Partner Banks in the Region
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is one of the leaders in the banking industry, 

setting new standards in terms of small busi-

ness finance and customer service. Six of the 

10 institutions have received an international  

rating, and in each case it was one of the highest 

awarded to any bank in the country in question. 

 Using a credit technology that is tailor-

made to fit the specific requirements of small 

businesses, the ProCredit institutions have 

been able to quickly expand their lending  

operations. Currently, the group serves approx-

imately 187,000 loan clients across the region. 

Particular attention is now being paid to rural 

areas, and an increasing number of ProCredit 

loans are being disbursed to businesses in the 

agricultural sector. 

 However, in accordance with their mis-

sion “to provide a broad range of reliable  

financial services”, the ProCredit banks are 

not merely lending institutions, but also offer 

a considerable number of simple and straight-

forward non-credit products aimed at the gen-

eral public, including deposit facilities, private 

current accounts and debit/credit cards. Par-

ticularly the institutions in Eastern Europe have 

invested considerable financial and human  

resources in developing these operations over 

the last 12 months. The regional network offers 

special advantages when it comes to providing 

various kinds of non-credit products which are 

increasingly in demand. As cross-border travel 

and business activities gain in importance, the 

ProCredit banks have simplified the procedures 

for international money transfers between 

group institutions, and made their prices even 

more competitive. And ProCredit clients now 

have access to more and more ATMs across the 

region, at no extra cost. 

 Even more importantly, the strong Pro-

Credit network permits a continuous exchange 

of know-how between the institutions to take 

place. Management staff exchanges, cross-

border training programmes and regional work-

shops and seminars ensure that improvements 

and experience are quickly shared across the 

region, thus accelerating the institutional de-

velopment of the network banks and enhanc-

ing the quality and reliability of their services. 

As part of the regional network, ProCredit Bank 

Ukraine is benefiting from this steadily increas-

ing cooperation.
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 Name Highlights Contact

 ProCredit Bank  Founded in March 1999 Rruga Sami Frasheri  
 Albania 15 branches Tirana 
  18,951 borrowers / EUR 79 million in loans Tel./Fax: +(355) 4-271 272 / 276
  50,311 depositors / EUR 116 million info@procreditbank.com.al 
  387 employees www.procreditbank.com.al

 ProCredit Bank  Founded in October 1997 Sime Milutinovica Sarajlije 4
 Bosnia and Herzegovina 13 branches 71000 Sarajevo
  19,866 borrowers / EUR 61.4 million in loans Tel./Fax: +(387) 33-250 950 / 250 971
  24,609 depositors / EUR 21 million info@procreditbank.ba
  291 employees www.procreditbank.ba

 ProCredit Bank  Founded in October 2001 131, Hristo Botev Blvd. 
 Bulgaria 35 branches Sofi a
  26,852 borrowers / EUR 139.3 million in loans Tel./Fax: +(359) 2 921 71 00 / 71 10
  53,384 depositors / EUR  75.6 million contact@procreditbank.bg
  623 employees www.procreditbank.bg
 
 ProCredit Bank  Founded in May 1999 D. Agmashenebeli Ave 154
 Georgia 19 branches Tbilisi
  16,295 borrowers / EUR 50.4 million in loans Tel./Fax: +(995) 32-20 2222 / 0580
  36,532 depositors / EUR 24.9 million info@procreditbank.ge
  605 employees www.procreditbank.ge

 ProCredit Bank  Founded in January 2000 Rr Skenderbeu 
 Kosovo 16 branches  38000 Prishtina/ Kosovo UNMIK
  28,600 borrowers / EUR 109.9 million in loans Tel./Fax: +(381) 38-249624 /-248777 
  157,500 depositors / EUR 310 million info@procreditbank-kos.com  
  430 employees www.procreditbank-kos.com

 ProCredit Bank  Founded in July 2003 Jane Sandanski 109a
 Macedonia 7 branches 1000 Skopje
  8,008 borrowers / EUR 23.7 million in loans Tel./Fax: +(389) 2 321 99 00 / 01
  14,018 depositors / EUR 11.6 million info@procreditbank.com.mk
  171 employees www.procreditbank.com.mk 
 
 ProCredit  Founded in December 1999 Izmail, 31 
 Moldova 16 branches  Chisinau
  5,483 borrowers / EUR 9.2 million in loans Tel./Fax: +(373) 22 27-07 07/-34 88
  140 employees offi ce@procredit.md 
   www.procredit.md
 
 ProCredit Bank  Founded in June 2002  Calea Buzesti, nr. 62-64, Sector 1
 Romania 10 branches  011017 Bucharest
  10,870 borrowers / EUR 50.7 million in loans Tel./Fax: +(40) 21-201.6000/305.5663
  18,600 depositors / EUR 25 million  headoffi ce@procreditbank.ro
  269 employees www.procreditbank.ro

 ProCredit Bank  Founded in April 2001  Bulevar despota Stefana 68c
 Serbia 25 branches  Belgrade
  34,959 borrowers /EUR 122 million in loans Tel./Fax: +(381) 11 20 77 906/ 905 
  89,660 depositors/ EUR 92 million  info@procreditbank.co.yu
  744 employees www.procreditbank.co.yu 
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Business Review

 After gaining independence in 1991, 

Ukraine entered a long phase of economic de-

cline, but in 1999–2000 the turnaround finally 

came, and since then Ukraine’s economy has 

enjoyed continuous growth. Bearing in mind 

that 2004 was such a turbulent year, given the  

political and economic uncertainty created 

by the presidential elections, the GDP growth 

rate of over 10% was an impressive demonstra-

tion of how strong the economy has become. 

 Whereas in the first half of 2004 the 

economy continued the trends observed during 

2003, the political and economic environment 

started to change dramatically in the second 

half of the year as election day approached, 

and the country was plunged into utter turmoil 

in the last quarter by the political crisis that fol-

lowed. Thousands of people took to the streets 

of many Ukrainian cities to show their support 

for the opposition leader, Viktor Yushchenko, 

who, according to the official count, had lost the 

presidential election to the pro-government can-

didate, Viktor Yanukovych. Many observers and 

voters believed that the results had been rigged, 

and the powerful but peaceful resistance of the 

opposition eventually forced Ukraine’s par- 

liament to declare the election null and void, af-

ter which the Supreme Court set a date for a re-

run. Although the political situation remained 

uncertain until the end of the year, signs of sta-

bilisation reappeared after it became clear that 

Mr. Yushchenko’s lead was unassailable.

 The events that accompanied the elec-

tion undoubtedly affected numerous econom-

ic indicators in 2004, but they did not cause  

major deviations from the forecasts made ear-

lier in the year. Government revenues grew 

by roughly 20% compared to 2003. However, 

the budget deficit came to 1.7% of GDP, which 

was noticeably worse than the figures for the  

preceding years since 2000. This was believed 

to be mainly the result of increased expendi-

tures designed to strengthen the position of 

the pro-government presidential candidate, 

who was simultaneously the country’s prime 

minister. The government debt also increased 

by 10.7% over the year, to approximately USD 

16.1 billion, after declining in 2003. Inflation 

averaged 12.3% in 2004, which can still be con-

sidered moderate taking into account the over-

all economic and political situation in Ukraine 

and the rise in oil prices on world markets.

 Ukraine’s financial sector developed 

well in 2004, although it ran into difficulties in 

the last quarter of the year. Total deposits by 

legal entities and individuals in the banking 

sector had risen by 34.7% to about USD 15.7 bil-

lion by the end of 2004, and the aggregate loan 

portfolio of all commercial banks had increased 

by 30.6% to USD 16.7 billion. Thus, there was 

clearly a further significant increase in financial 

intermediation. 

 The National Bank of Ukraine’s pol-

icy was mainly aimed at strengthening the  

domestic currency. Foreign currency reserves 

grew from USD 6.9 billion to USD 9.6 billion 

during the  year. Foreign trade volumes were 

up in 2004, and the sustained current account 

surplus has contributed to the strength of the 

hryvna. However, the demand for foreign cur-

rency rose sharply in October–December of 

2004. In response, the National Bank of Ukraine 

increased its supply of foreign currency and at 

the same time introduced temporary restric-

POLITICAL AND ECONOMIC

ENVIRONMENT
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tions for banks, which limited foreign currency 

purchases. Through a series of administrative 

measures – primarily by imposing restrictions 

on early deposit withdrawals and limits on pay-

ment and cash withdrawal operations – the 

National Bank of Ukraine was successful in pre-

venting the banking sector from incurring sig-

nificant losses of liquidity and money outflows 

during the political crisis. 

 At the end of the year, the banking sec-

tor practically stopped lending, and ProCredit 

Bank was the only institution that continued to 

disburse loans to small enterprises. Some of 

the commercial banks in Ukraine are coming 

around to seeing MSE lending as a business 

with huge potential, or even as an opportu-

nity to achieve a turnaround and strengthen 

their competitive position in the banking mar-

ket. However, access to reliable sources of fi-

nancing is still severely limited for a very large 

percentage of small businesses. In light of the 

economic development forecasts for 2005 and 

the coming years, it is crucial to ensure broader  

access to loans in order to reach the vast num-

ber of small businesses in Ukraine, which at 

year-end was estimated at more than three mil-

lion, and to enable them to realise their tremen-

dous potential.
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Loan Portfolio Development
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 Lending at ProCredit Bank developed 

strongly in 2004, and by the end of the year the 

outstanding loan portfolio had crossed the USD 

100 million threshold. As of December 31, 2004 

the portfolio consisted of 21,500 loans totalling 

USD 101.5 million. 

 The bank’s improved lending perfor-

mance was achieved by an enlarged lending 

staff: 72 new loan officers joined the bank in 

2004, bringing the total number of employees 

in the credit division up to 210 by the end of the 

year.

 ProCredit Bank’s loan portfolio is highly 

diversified. Roughly three quarters of the 

outstanding loan volume is spread across 15  

regional cities, while Kiev accounts for only 

16%. Despite significant overall loan volume 

growth, the average loan amount stayed at the 

same level as in previous years, at around USD 

4,700. The sectoral breakdown of the portfolio 

was as follows: 55% of the portfolio was ac-

counted for by trade, 15% by industry and pro-

duction and 30% by services, including trans-

port and communications.

 A brief delay in the disbursement of IFI 

funding slowed portfolio growth in May and 

June, but did not force us to impose any restric-

tions on lending to the micro segment, which 

was the main source of loan portfolio growth 

throughout the year. The micro loan portfolio, 

consisting of loans up to USD 10,000, increased 

by 112%, while in the small loan category (USD 

10,001 to 50,000) the portfolio grew by 53%. 

The main reason for the particularly impres-

sive increase in the micro segment was the 

high level of demand for our Express Loan 

(amounts up to USD 3,000), a new product with 

simplified procedures and minimised collateral  

requirements, which was introduced at the end 

of 2003 and really took off in 2004.

LENDING PERFORMANCE
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Loan Portfolio Quality (arrears >30 days)

Net Write Offs in 2004: USD 126,979

in % of Loan Portfolio 
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 The loan portfolio grew at the expected 

rate during the first three quarters of the year, 

increasing by USD 12.1 million in the first quar-

ter, USD 8.1 million in the second, and USD 13.1 

million in the third, but a combination of politi-

cal instability and relatively low demand dur-

ing the last quarter of 2004 reduced portfolio 

growth to a rather moderate USD 8.6 million. 

However, considering that the vast majority of 

Ukrainian banks were rationing credit at this 

time, the fact that ProCredit Bank was able 

to disburse small business loans without any 

limitations is remarkable in itself. As a result, 

ProCredit Bank greatly enhanced its reputation 

among its current and prospective clients as 

a trustworthy institution that was willing and 

able to support them and their businesses, 

even during times as difficult as the last few 

months of 2004.

 Altogether, the bank disbursed over 

22,600 loans for more than USD 116 million 

during 2004, which is equivalent to 48% of the 

total volume and 46.5% of the total number of 

loans disbursed by the bank since it went into 

operation.

 With a portfolio at risk (loans with pay-

ments overdue more than 30 days) of only 0.8% 

as of December 31, 2004, the quality of the loan 

portfolio remained at a very high level, despite 

the political upheavals. The loan loss reserves 

cover 2.8% of the total portfolio, and no less 

than 320% of the aggregate balance of loans 

with payments more than 30 days overdue. In 

2004, 38 loans (totalling USD 127,000) with 

arrears exceeding 360 days were written off. 

This was the first year since the inception of the 

bank that loans had to be written off, and the 

amount in question represents only 0.05% of 

the total volume of loans disbursed since the 

start of lending operations. Moreover, we be-

lieve that there is a realistic chance of recover-

ing these loans, and management will persist in 

its efforts to do so.

 Ukraine is to a large extent an agricul-

tural country, and in 2004 we introduced a new 

type of credit product designed specifically for 

the agricultural sector. To obtain a clearer pic-

ture of clients’ needs in this sector, we launched 

a pilot project in the Poltava region. By the end 

of 2004, 40 agricultural micro loans totalling 

USD 200,000 had been disbursed to farmers. 

During 2005, the bank plans to expand its cov-

erage of the agricultural segment to other re-

gions of the country. In order to increase out-

reach, the deployment of mobile credit offices 

is currently being considered and is likely to 

begin in 2005.
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Client Deposits
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DEPOSIT SERVICES

added to the range, and this played a signifi-

cant part in the more than fivefold increase 

in the number of term deposits, from 1,059 to 

5,528 at year-end 2004. The relatively strong 

growth of term deposits during the fourth quar-

ter of the year (+26%), when the entire banking 

system was feeling the consequences of the 

political crisis, is mainly attributable to the 

bank’s outstanding reputation and its perfor-

mance to date.

 Both term deposits and sight deposits 

grew significantly, especially in Kiev; however, 

the increase in sight deposits was slower in 

some of the regions, where entrepreneurs still 

prefer to conduct business mainly in cash. In  ad-

dition, during the final quarter of 2004 most le-

gal entities in Ukraine endeavoured to keep their 

sight deposit balances as low as possible until it 

became clear how the political crisis would be 

resolved. Nonetheless, our newly established 

Business Client Development  Department suc-

ceeded in attracting the business of a number of 

larger Ukrainian and foreign companies that are 

interested in using ProCredit Bank’s non-credit 

services. With this additional business coming 

in, especially at the end of December, we have 

laid the foundations for a steady increase in 

sight deposits during 2005.

 In 2004 ProCredit Bank once again put 

considerable emphasis on developing its retail 

business, and in particular its range of deposit 

facilities. Specialised retail structures were cre-

ated at both head office and branch level, and 

substantial investments were made in human 

resources, including the hiring and training of 

70 client advisers, as well as in marketing, pub-

lic relations and the bank’s infrastructure. The 

sizable growth of term deposits in 2004 is just 

one indication of the extent to which these in-

novations were appreciated by our clients. 

 The overall volume of deposits tripled 

during the year, from USD 11.6 million to USD 

35.5 million. Several new retail products were 
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OTHER BANKING SERVICES

 Other banking services developed 

in line with deposit and lending volumes in 

2004. In particular, substantial use was made 

of the debit cards which are issued in order to  

simplify salary payments to the employees of 

our business clients.

 As in other departments, the bank also 

strengthened the internal structures of the unit 

responsible for card business. Not only was the 

issuance of new cards accelerated – 7,700 new 

cards were issued in 2004, bringing the total 

number of active card holders to 9,800 – but 

there was also a considerable expansion of 

the range of services provided. New technol-

ogy was introduced to meet the local demand 

for new and more convenient card services, 

and to keep pace with the rapid development 

of card use in Ukraine. Twenty ATMs were in-

stalled in 2004, and became progressively 

more popular not only among our own clients 

but also among clients of our partner banks in 

the ProCredit network and among foreigners 

visiting Ukraine. A campaign was launched to 

promote the installation of POS terminals, and  

now 41 merchants accept cards as a means of 

payment for goods and services via ProCredit 

Bank Ukraine. In 2005 the bank will become 

a full member of both Visa International (un-

til now it has been an associate member) and 

MasterCard International. The introduction of 

a corporate card will be one of the first pro- 

jects to be undertaken in the coming year.
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International Money Transfers
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 Domestic and international money trans-

fers developed equally strongly, in particular in 

the final quarter of 2004, when the volume of 

international payments rose to more than USD 

20 million, a two-thirds increase over the previ-

ous quarters.

 In September ProCredit Bank Ukraine 

joined the ProPay System, enabling the bank 

to offer money transfers at highly competitive 

rates to business clients that operate interna-

tionally. ProPay is designed especially for cli-

ents who do business with customers of the 

other ProCredit Banks in Central Europe. With 

a ProPay transfer, the funds are credited to the 

beneficiary’s account on the same day as the 

order is presented, without any fee deducted 

(i.e., there are no correspondent bank charg-

es). In 2005, in addition to Western Union mon-

ey transfer services, the bank will start to offer  

international money transfers via the ANELIK 

system, which is a particularly attractive op-

tion for clients wishing to make or receive inter- 

national transfers of relatively small amounts – 

typically remittances to and from family mem-

bers living abroad.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

 During 2004, ProCredit Bank experi-

enced significant asset growth of 85%. This 

was primarily a consequence of the conversion 

of our seven representative offices into full ser-

vice branches and the opening of five complete-

ly new branches, allowing the bank to generate 

a higher volume of loan and deposit business.

 As in all previous years, the main driving 

force behind the bank’s growth was the busi-

ness loan portfolio, which represents 71% of 

the bank’s total assets and climbed to USD 94.1 

million, an increase of 69% compared to 2003. 

This development was consistent with our mis-

sion as a bank that specialises in lending to 

small businesses.

 To finance its lending operations, Pro-

Credit Bank Ukraine relies on four main sources 

of funds: customer deposits, loans from inter-

national financial institutions (IFIs), syndicated 

loans and bonds. In 2004 decisive progress 

was made in our efforts to establish the bank’s 

reputation as a reliable and trustworthy partner 

for retail and corporate depositors. Thanks to 

the constant attention paid to this line of busi-

ness by management, the persistent efforts 

of our staff and a series of focused marketing 

campaigns, the bank succeeded in raising the 

volume of customer deposits to USD 35.5 mil-

lion, compared to USD 11.6 million in 2003.

 As regards IFI funding, the bank signed a 

number of new long-term financial agreements 

during 2004, through which these lending in-

stitutions underlined their long-term support 

for the bank. As a result, the volume of IFI fund-

ing grew to USD 49.8 million as of year-end. 

However, as a share of total liabilities, IFI loans  

decreased significantly, from 55% in 2003 to 

42% in 2004, reflecting the bank’s efforts to 

diversify its funding base and to become in-

creasingly independent of external funding of 

this type.
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 During 2004 the bank succeeded in at-

tracting its first syndicated loan facility. We 

are confident that commercial borrowing and 

syndication will continue to accelerate in 2005, 

particularly in light of the international BB- rat-

ing which the bank received from Fitch Ratings 

at the beginning of 2005.

 By issuing local currency-denominated 

bonds on the Ukrainian market, ProCredit Bank 

raised an additional USD 6.5 million. This fourth 

bond issue has a three-year maturity and an  

annual put option. Encouraged by the success 

of our placements to date, and by the strong in-

terest shown by the market, ProCredit Bank will 

continue to issue bonds in 2005.

 The effectiveness of the bank’s care-

ful liquidity management throughout 2004 is 

best illustrated by its high liquidity ratio (liquid  

assets to total assets) of 19% at the end of 

2004, when the Ukrainian banking sector in 

general experienced liquidity problems.

 The bank’s level of profitability in-

creased significantly during 2004, and is high 

for a young development-oriented bank under-

going a process of rapid expansion and growth. 

ProCredit Bank Ukraine closed the year with 

a profit of USD 1.5 million (compared to USD 

403,000 in 2003), resulting in a return on aver-

age equity ratio of 10%.

 By the end of 2004, the bank’s income 

from operations had increased by 109% over 

the previous year’s figure, reaching USD 12.6 

million as against USD 6 million in 2003. The 

fact that we achieved such a significant in-

crease was primarily attributable to the growth 

of our loan portfolio, which generated net inter-

est income of USD 9.9 million in 2004, up from 

USD 3.9 million in 2003. As a consequence of 

the conversion of representative offices into 

full fledged branches and the introduction of 

more diversified and customer-friendly ser-

vices, the volume of net fee and commission in-

come earned by ProCredit Bank rose to USD two 

million in the year just ended, compared to USD 

1.5 million in 2003. This achievement is all the 

more remarkable when one considers that the 

bank, in compliance with IFRS standard #39, 

started to recognise commission income from 

the disbursement of loans over the lifetime of 

the loan, which led to a sharp reduction in com-

mission income for the year 2004.

 Following the recommendations of the 

Supervisory Board and in order to properly  

reflect the excellent quality of the loan portfo-

lio, the level of general loan loss provisions was 

lowered from 3% to 2%, while the level of spe-

cific loan loss provisions was raised. The over-

all level of provisions remained unchanged.

 The conversion of the representative  

offices into full service branches, the expan-

sion of the branch network, and the neces-

sary recruitment of additional staff resulted in 

a significant increase in the bank’s cost base. 

Personnel expenses increased by 64.7%, and 

the bank’s general administrative expenses 

increased accordingly, by 116% during 2004, 

driven mainly by higher investments in infra-

structure, which in turn led to higher communi-

cation and maintenance expenses, intensified 

marketing, and increased expenses for staff 

training, integration measures, etc.
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 As mentioned above, the outstanding 

stability demonstrated by ProCredit Bank in the 

challenging environment of the final quarter of 

2004 was promptly recognised in the form of 

an upgrade of the bank’s rating by Fitch Ratings 

to BB- Stable. This was undoubtedly a very  

important milestone on our way to developing 

ProCredit Bank into a genuine “people’s bank”, 

i.e. a stable provider of excellent financial ser-

vices to the general public, and a reliable finan-

cial partner for small businesses across the 

country.

 As in the preceding years, the crucial 

factor for our bank’s long-term success will  

continue to be our ability to win the confidence 

of the Ukrainian people, and especially of those 

who still keep their savings “under the mat-

tress”. With our reputation growing progres-

sively stronger, we are confident that ProCredit 

Bank will continue to perform well, thus earn-

ing the trust of an ever larger percentage of 

the public, which we expect to be reflected in 

a doubling of our local customer funds in 2005. 

To achieve this ambitious goal, we will offer 

competitive deposit products for individuals 

and legal entities, combined with the friendli-

est service possible, and will continue to ex-

pand our range of retail products.

 The growing base of customer funds, 

mobilised through an expanding branch net-

work, mainly in the more affluent cities of 

Ukraine (in particular in Kiev), will allow us to 

further enlarge the loan portfolio and increase 

the portion of local currency loans as a share 

of total lending, a type of product for which 

demand is especially strong in the smaller 

towns and rural areas. It is mainly in these ar-

eas that we will increase our lending activities 

and outreach, by opening up to three additional 

branches and deploying mobile offices. These 

efforts, coupled with further placements of 

bonds and, for the first time, commercial bank 

loans obtained from abroad, will enhance Pro-

Credit Bank’s capacity to engage in financial 

intermediation and advance the integration of 

our institution into the Ukrainian financial sec-

tor. We will thus be in an even stronger posi-

tion to explore the abundant opportunities to 

do business with small businesses and private 

individuals, thereby earning moderate prof-

its, gaining in stability and, at the same time, 

implementing the developmental goals of the 

bank’s shareholders.

 As the number of employees continues 

to grow, we will naturally continue to provide 

training on an ongoing basis in order to en-

sure that both newly hired employees and our 

more experienced staff acquire and develop 

the sound technical skills that enable them to 

perform their duties with the highest degree 

of professionalism. In 2005 there will be a 

special focus on maintaining and strengthen-

ing the bank’s corporate spirit and business 

ethics, and ensuring that newly-hired employ-

ees quickly become integrated into the bank’s 

team. In this crucial area, the bank will be sup-

ported by its shareholder organisations and its 

Eastern European sister banks in the ProCredit 

network.

 In 2005, small business lending in 

Ukraine will become increasingly competi-

tive as more and more local banks notice that  

ProCredit’s business model is not only feasible 

but also attractive from a financial point of 

OUTLOOK
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view. However, we are almost certain that a vast 

number of micro enterprises will continue to 

be largely ignored by other banks, despite the 

almost unlimited demand for credit in this sec-

tor, and we are convinced that they will greatly  

appreciate the full attention they will receive 

from ProCredit Bank. In the deposit market, we 

expect competition to intensify even further, 

not least because foreign banks are finally 

starting to enter the Ukrainian banking market 

on a broader scale.

 All in all, 2005 will be a very impor-

tant and challenging year for ProCredit Bank. 

By making effective use of both the new 

and the existing infrastructure that we have 

in place, we aim to achieve greater econo-

mies of scale, further improvements in the 

bank’s key indicators – such as the cost- 

income ratio and the return on equity – and, 

most importantly, an increase in the number of 

satisfied customers who appreciate the finan-

cial services we provide.
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Risk Management

 Like any financial institution, ProCredit 

Bank faces a variety of risks arising from its 

business operations. Pursuing a prudent and 

consistent risk management policy, the bank 

carefully analyses the risks to which it may be 

exposed and takes measures to minimise and 

control them.

 In 2003 the bank began the process of 

formalising its approach to risk management 

by introducing systematic procedures for risk 

evaluation, analysis of the degree of risk ex-

posure, and the establishment of action plans 

aimed at minimising risk. In addition to credit 

risk, the specific types of risk which the bank 

monitors are market risk (interest rate risk and 

currency risk); financial risk (liquidity risk and 

performance risk); operational risk; and other 

inherent risks (legal risk, compliance risk and 

reputation risk).

 In the first instance, risk management is 

the responsibility of a number of key commit-

tees. The risk management committees serve 

two purposes: to create risk awareness among 

all levels of the bank’s middle management em-

ployees, and to encourage open and construc-

tive discussions of the bank’s risk exposures as 

a means of identifying optimal risk minimisation 

strategies. The bank’s General and Operational 

Risk Reports serve as the basis for the commit-

tees’ discussions, as well as for risk reporting to 

the senior management and the shareholders of 

the bank. In 2004, the position of Risk Manager 

was created; this individual is primarily respon-

sible for risk reporting to the management and 

for organising and coordinating the activities 

of the various risk committees. Currently the 

bank has three risk management committees: 

 Credit Risk Committee – as the major 

business activity of the bank is lending, the 

credit risk committee was established to moni-

tor the counterparty risks in a timely and ad-

equate manner, and to analyse trends and pat-

terns in the bank’s lending activities. Despite 

the rapid growth during the last year, the qual-

ity of the portfolio remains very high, with the 

portfolio at risk (loans with payments overdue 

more than 30 days) at a level of 0.8%.

 Operational Risk Committee – the pur-

pose of this committee is to analyse in a timely 

manner, and efficiently manage, risks arising 

from inadequate or failed internal controls, 

risks arising from human error or wrongdoing, 

and risks arising from external events. It carries 

out its work on the basis of the Operational Risk  

Report.

 Even though operational risk is inher-

ent to our operations and cannot be eliminated 

entirely, the bank has consistently minimised 

such risk from the very start of its operations 

by following best practice in operational risk 

control based on a proper separation of duties, 

i.e. the “four-eyes” principle. During 2004, 

with the support of the Methodology Depart-

ment, the bank focused on establishing manu-

als and procedures for all types of operations 

in order to provide employees with reliable and 

well-thought-out guidance in carrying out the 

bank’s business activities.

 The bank’s nine-member internal audit 

team performs a very important function in 

this connection, ensuring that operational risk 

is mitigated and that the internal controls are  

operating as intended. 
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 General Risk Committee – the purpose 

of this committee is to analyse the general risks 

the bank faces, i.e. strategic risk, market risk, 

competitor risk and financial performance risk 

(including interest rate risk).

 All of the bank’s day-to-day liquidity and 

currency management issues are dealt with by 

the Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO), 

which in its weekly meetings reviews the curren-

cy structure in order to ensure that no currency 

mismatches arise, and analyses the maturity 

structure of the bank’s assets and liabilities to 

ensure that an appropriate level of liquidity is 

maintained at all times. By avoiding all kinds of 

speculative operations and conducting careful 

liquidity management, we ensured that even 

during the most turbulent times in the Ukraini-

an financial sector, ProCredit Bank maintained 

a high level of liquidity and was thus a reliable 

partner for our clients.

 In 2005, we plan to carry out further 

measures in regard to risk management, with 

the main focus on IT security and on further en-

hancement of the risk control practices we have 

established. We believe that proper risk control 

practices will contribute a great deal to the suc-

cess of our business operations, to the achieve-

ment of good financial results and, most of all, 

to gaining the trust of our customers.
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Branch Network

 As in previous years, the expansion of 

ProCredit Bank’s branch network continued to 

play a very important role in strengthening the 

bank’s position in the retail banking market in 

Ukraine. By the end of the year, the bank had a 

total of 27 full-service branches and two repre-

sentative offices covering 15 cities throughout 

Ukraine.

 One of the two main challenges in 2004 

in expanding the branch network was the con-

version of the bank’s representative offices in 

smaller cities into full-service branches. In each 

case, the conversion went hand-in-hand with 

the hiring and training of new staff and a relo-

cation to new premises, and therefore required 

thorough preparation and several months of 

full supervision. It was mainly for this reason 

that a branch development department was 

founded at head office level at the beginning of 

2004.

 The branch development department 

successfully carried out the envisaged sup-

port functions and contributed enormously 

to our efforts to establish new branches. The 

new branches share not only the same corpo-

rate design, but also ProCredit Bank’s corpo-

rate culture, despite the fact that the number 

of employees often tripled within a few months 

in each location. At the end of 2003, there were 

nine representative offices offering only loans 

to small enterprises; just one year later, seven 

of them had already become branches offer-

ing the full range of the bank’s services to their 

clients. The strong growth in fee income and 

in deposit volumes confirms that the bank’s 

clients in smaller towns indeed have a strong 

demand for non-credit services in addition to 

loans and indicates that the newly-established 

branches will soon be able to pay back the in-

vestments made and to fully cover the higher 

monthly expenses.

 The second cornerstone of our branch 

development strategy in 2004 was the opening 

of additional branches with a strong retail and 

deposit focus in central locations in Ukraine’s 

largest cities, in particular Kiev. In all, five such 

modern customer centres were opened over 

the course of the year, in the centres of Kiev, 

Kharkiv, Donetsk, Dnipropetrovsk and Odessa 

– and although still very new, they already  

accounted for 16% of all retail deposits of the 

bank as of the end of 2004. The main purpose 

of these branches is to guarantee that our sav-

ers and depositors receive the best possible 

service at locations which are easy and conve-

nient for them to reach.

32 P r o C r e d i t  B a n k  U k r a i n e        A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 0 4



Sumy

Kharkiv (4)

Mariupol

Dnipropetrovsk(2)
Bila Tserkva

Odesa (2)

Lviv (2)

Ivano-Frankivsk

Ukraine

Poltava

Makiivka

Kramatorsk

Donetsk (2)

Gorlivka

Kyiv (7)

Zaporizhia

 And last but not least, in December 

2004 the bank began offering its services in 

Zaporizhia, one of the larger Ukrainian cities 

and one which was not yet served by ProCredit 

Bank. The branch opening in Zaporizhia was 

the starting point for a phase of further region-

al expansion: In 2005, the bank will not only 

finish converting its remaining two representa-

tive offices into full-service branches, but will 

also add new branches in at least two regions 

where ProCredit Bank is not yet represented. 

The steadily growing branch network will be 

complemented by up to three “creditmobiles” 

planned for 2005. These mobile branches 

will be oriented towards lending to rural and  

agricultural businesses and should allow us to 

reach clients who cannot be served by one of 

our permanent branches.

 Like the existing branches, all new 

branches will have a modern interior and a uni-

form design which enables our clientele to eas-

ily recognise them as offices of ProCredit Bank 

and to experience the bank's modern, open and 

friendly atmosphere, no matter which branch 

they are visiting.
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Organisation, Staff and Staff Development

 As anticipated, the year 2004 brought 

many challenges as we carried out substantial 

changes to the bank’s organisational struc-

ture. Over the year the bank made considerable 

progress in terms of strengthening the head  

office structures, organising the front and back 

office structures in a clearer and more efficient 

manner, expanding the functions of the con-

trolling and administration departments and 

implementing the business client development 

department, the latter an innovation which is 

highly appreciated by our business clients. 

 2004 was in many respects a remark-

able year for our bank. After a long-planned 

handover process, Mr. Dirk Haboeck, former 

member of the Supervisory Board, assumed re-

sponsibility as the new General Manager. At the 

same time, Dr. Anja Lepp moved on to become a 

member of the bank’s Supervisory Board.

 While we ended 2004 with a two-mem-

ber management team, at the beginning of 2005 

the team was expanded to three members. 

These individuals, together with the two execu-

tive directors responsible for business client 

development and credit respectively, form the 

extended five-person management team which 

will lead our fast-growing bank in 2005.

 In the course of 2004, a total of 408 new 

employees were recruited, increasing the num-

ber of employees to 853 by year-end. This signif-

icant growth in the number of employees was in 

line with management’s and the shareholders’ 

expectations and was necessary to ensure that 

the foundation was laid for further develop-

ment, and that clients’ expectations in regard 

to customer service could not only be met, but 

exceeded. The major increase in the number of 

Organisational Structure
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staff was due to the conversion of the repre-

sentative offices into full-service branches, the 

opening of new branches, a greater emphasis 

on deposit-taking, and further strengthening of 

head office structures.

 As a result of the significant increase 

in the size of our staff, one of the major chal-

lenges for 2005 will be to ensure that the new 

employees are fully integrated into the existing 

team. This will require efficient communication 

and the dissemination of our corporate culture 

and ethics among both new and existing em-

ployees. Our Code of Conduct, which sets forth 

our high professional and ethical standards and 

which is communicated to all our employees, is 

one reason why we are confident that we will 

meet this challenge. In addition, a mentorship 

programme was recently introduced: Through 

the mentorship programme, each new employ-

ee is assigned to a senior staff member who as-

sumes overall responsibility for the training of 

the new recruit.

 Being a young, ambitious and fast-grow-

ing institution, the bank offers to its staff mem-

bers unique, fast-track career opportunities in 

an open and international environment. The ma-

jority of our staff members started their careers 

with the bank. They see the bank as a fair and 

honest employer providing many opportunities 

for self-realisation and growth, both within the 

institution and within the ProCredit network. 

 While providing challenging career op-

portunities for our staff members, we also im-

pose a great many responsibilities, and with our 

strict Code of Conduct establish high profes-

sional and ethical standards for our employees. 

 ProCredit Bank sets these standards for 

its employees because it believes that they are 

the most effective means of creating a pleasant 

working environment characterised by respect 

for colleagues and customers alike. They also 

form an ideal basis for developing the kind of 

professional, individualised staff-client rela-

tionships which play a key role in building mu-

tual trust and which allow us to focus on finding 

the best solutions for each client.

 ProCredit Bank Ukraine invests a great 

deal in training in order to ensure that its high 

professional and ethical standards are main-

tained. We organise both internal and external 

courses for our employees, enabling them to 

acquire both technical expertise and the “soft 

skills” necessary for their professional and per-

sonal development.
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 Our high standards of business ethics 

are reflected in the bank’s Code of Conduct. It 

was introduced with the aim of creating and 

maintaining an open and transparent working 

environment, in which the interests of the bank, 

its employees and its clients are all equally well 

protected. All of our staff members are expected 

to adhere to the highest standards of conduct 

and to act with honesty, integrity, impartiality 

and respect in all their dealings with fellow em-

ployees, clients and the general public. 

 It is a strict rule that the bank must not 

conduct or support transactions involving 

funds which may be suspected to have origi-

nated from criminal activities. Accordingly, 

compliance with the legal requirements for the 

prevention of money laundering is given spe-

cial emphasis. The operational modules of Pro-

Credit Bank’s IT system are designed to detect 

and track suspicious transactions, and the anti-

money laundering compliance officer reports to 

the local authorities on a regular basis.

 As a member of the ProCredit group, Pro 

Credit Bank Ukraine defines its role as a devel-

opment-oriented institution not only in com-

mercial and economic terms. It also regards 

promoting environmentally sound and ethical 

business practices as an integral part of its 

mission to support long-term development.

 Both in the way it conducts its own oper-

ations and in the criteria it applies when select-

ing its clients, ProCredit Bank Ukraine adheres 

to strict environmental standards. In order to 

facilitate compliance with these standards, the 

bank has formulated an Environmental Policy 

Statement, which is part of an overall Environ-

mental Management System that has been ad-

opted by all of the institutions belonging to the 

ProCredit group. In addition to applicable legal 

requirements, the Environmental Policy State-

ment includes an Exclusion List which defines 

a number of environmentally hazardous activi-

ties that may not be financed with a ProCredit 

loan. ProCredit Bank Ukraine also refuses to 

finance, or be associated in any other way with, 

economic activities that involve coercive or un-

safe forms of labour, in particular harmful child 

labour.

Ethical and Environmental Standards
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Our Clients

CLOTHING RETAIL CATERING

Ukrainians go for Georgian cuisine 

 Elvira, 38, worked in a state-run canteen 

during the Soviet era. In 1995 she decided to 

open a kiosk, which she then expanded into the 

retail shop that she has been operating for six 

years. Six months ago she fulfilled a dream by 

opening a restaurant, named “Eliso” after her 

daughter. She took courses in restaurant man-

agement, and borrowed the funds to purchase 

and renovate the premises from friends. “When 

I saw that it was not enough to fully equip the 

restaurant, I applied to a local bank for a loan, 

but the procedures and requirements were too 

bureaucratic.” Then she was advised by her 

mother, who was already a client of the bank, 

to try ProCredit Bank. Her first loan was used 

to outfit the restaurant’s kitchen. Today, the  

restaurant, which specialises in Georgian cui-

sine, has a sizeable number of regular custom-

ers. 

 “I am very grateful to ProCredit Bank 

because the staff were so friendly and helpful, 

and they believed in my plans.” Her successful  

relationship with ProCredit Bank has con- 

tinued, as is reflected in the fact that the bank 

has installed one of its POS terminals in her 

restaurant.

Proud to have built his own business 

 50-year-old Anatoliy worked for many 

years at a local factory until it was closed down 

following the collapse of the Soviet Union. Soon 

afterwards, he decided to go into business for 

himself, selling clothes at the local market. Ini-

tially embarrassed to be a market trader, he is 

now proud of having his own business. Wish-

ing to expand, he borrowed money from private 

individuals, but was dissatisfied with the high 

interest rates. Then a friend advised him to 

try ProCredit Bank, and he was able to obtain 

a loan to increase his inventory in time for the 

winter, when demand is at its peak. Looking 

back, Anatoliy recalls: 

 “I was especially pleased with the quick 

service and the attentiveness and friendly  

manner with which the loan officer dealt with 

my application.” 

 Since becoming a customer of ProCredit 

Bank, Anatoliy has already taken out and repaid 

two loans, and he currently has a third loan out-

standing. He plans to continue his relationship 

with the bank in order to develop his business 

still further. In the very near future, he plans to 

look for a suitable site for a new kiosk. 
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MANUFACTURE OF CONCRETE FENCES 
AND PAVING SLABS 

Paving the way to business success 

 Irina, 34, started her own business five 

years ago. She began with small-scale produc-

tion of concrete fencing, using leased premises. 

Little by little, she was able to acquire larger 

and better facilities with the help of loans pro-

vided by private individuals, but the funds were 

not sufficient to allow her to expand her range 

of fences. Having heard about ProCredit Bank 

from a friend, she took out her first bank loan in 

order to replenish her working capital. 

 “I needed a long-term loan that I could 

repay in monthly instalments from the profit my 

business generates, and I was very pleased with 

the offer I received from ProCredit Bank. Also, I 

was impressed by the quick service.” 

 After paying back her first loan, which 

was for USD 3,000, she took out a second loan, 

in the amount of USD 5,000, which she invested 

in another line of business, namely the produc-

tion of paving slabs. 

 “Because of growing competition, I con-

stantly need to purchase new moulds. That is why 

it is so vital to have a reliable source of credit.”  

TRADE 

A growing market for local poultry 

 43-year-old Serhiy became an entrepre-

neur in 1997 when he established a retail sau-

sage and cheese business. In 2001, by conduct-

ing market analyses, he discovered that frozen 

American chicken drumsticks were among the 

best-selling products in the local market. This 

gave him an idea for an alternative product: 

refrigerated (not frozen) local chicken meat, 

which could be delivered to the retailer within 

a short time after slaughter, making it pos-

sible to preserve maximum nutritional value. 

 However, in order to establish a sales 

outlet for local chicken meat, Serhiy needed 

modern refrigeration equipment, and applied to 

ProCredit Bank for a loan. Today, thanks to the 

financial support provided by the bank, Serhiy 

has a flourishing network of 15 “Our Chicken” 

sales outlets.

  

 When asked to explain the reasons for 

his long-standing, successful relationship with 

the bank, Serhiy cites the polite and attentive 

staff, the lack of bureaucracy and the quick 

service he receives; taken together, all these 

factors are what make ProCredit Bank different 

from other banks. 
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PRINTING BUSINESS 

The art of printing 

 Yevhen and Natalya have worked in 

printing since 1995. Two years ago, they started 

their own business, borrowing from friends and 

relatives to cover the high start-up costs. “At 

that time it was difficult for us to develop our op-

eration because the banks did not want to lend 

to small enterprises,” remembers Natalya. “But 

we knew we needed to establish a long-term re-

lationship with a reliable bank.” 

 They considered several banks in Dnipro-

petrovsk before choosing ProCredit “because it 

seemed best suited to provide support for the 

development of our business. Only ProCredit 

Bank truly saw us as a customer. The others were 

only interested in checking our documents.”  

 Three days after they first approached 

the bank, they signed a loan agreement for USD 

50,000. Today the entrepreneurs proudly recall 

the hard work they have invested in their busi-

ness and how much they have learned in the 

process. In the meantime Yevhen and Natalya 

have started another business. With the help 

of ProCredit Bank, they plan to begin exporting 

their products and to acquire real estate in or-

der to expand production. 

RETAIL TRADE IN SPARE PARTS FOR 
AUTOMOBILES 

Building a successful business

 Olena was a teacher before going into 

business for herself. Encouraged by her hus-

band, who sells spare parts for automobiles 

at wholesale markets, Olena decided to open 

a retail auto parts shop in Dnipropetrovsk, to 

which her husband contributed both funds and 

expertise. Before applying to ProCredit Bank 

for a loan, Olena had been a customer of an-

other bank, but was dissatisfied because the 

cost of having collateral insured and appraised 

was so high, and because the bank was slow to 

approve loan applications. 

 “My attitude towards banks changed 

completely when I switched to ProCredit. I ob-

tained a loan of USD 3,000 and I wasn’t even 

asked to provide a pledge.” Soon after, she ob-

tained another loan, which she used to replen-

ish her working capital and purchase a com-

puter. “Thanks to this loan, I’ve been able to 

substantially expand my range of products and 

attract many new customers. Moreover, with the 

computer I’ve been able to put my accounts in 

good order.” As soon as she has saved enough, 

Olena plans to purchase her current business 

premises, which she is still leasing. 
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Business is blooming at the Velvet Rose Café

 52-year-old Tetiana decided to start a 

business in 1996 when she was made redun-

dant. She began by leasing an outdoor café. 

Two years later, she was able to open a grocery 

store, with the support of her daughter and 

husband. After running the store for a year, the 

family decided to build a bigger one. They heard 

about ProCredit Bank, and decided to take out 

a loan to finance renovation work, additional 

equipment and an expansion of their inventory.  

 “From the very first moment, we knew 

that ProCredit Bank was the bank for us. It of-

fers the best terms, guarantees confidentiality, 

and gives fast and high-quality service.” 

 The improvements to the store allowed 

the family to expand the business, and sales 

increased. After repaying the initial loan, Teti-

ana applied for USD 10,000 to start a café, and 

soon was welcoming the first customers to the 

Velvet Rose Café. “Although our business has 

grown to a level that allows us to live a good 

life, we still have many plans for the future. But 

whatever happens, I’m sure that ProCredit Bank 

will continue to support me and my family.” 

The future of high fashion in southern Ukraine  

 Alesya is 27 and has a three-year-old 

daughter. By the time she graduated from the 

Institute of Clothing Design and Styling in 2002, 

she had already won prizes as the “best young 

designer” in various competitions, and had  

begun to make clothes for a regular clientele. 

She joined the League of Business and Profes-

sional Women and also completed a business 

training course. She opened her first fashion 

atelier in August 2002, beginning with only 

two workers and two sewing machines. Before 

long, she had six employees and was able to 

open a second atelier. Alesya then applied to 

ProCredit Bank for a loan which enabled her 

to seize an opportunity to acquire production 

premises on favourable terms. In autumn 2004, 

she converted her business into an “open  

atelier” which no longer serves only a select  

clientele, but is open to the general public.

 “What I appreciate about ProCredit Bank 

is the quality of the information and advice I’ve 

been given, and the bank’s commitment to its 

customers. In the near future I hope to obtain a 

new loan to make my dream of owning my own 

clothing store come true.”

STYLING, DESIGN AND TAILORING CATERING
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RETAIL TRADE AGRICULTURE

How an engineer became a farmer

 Olexander is 42 years old; he is an engi-

neer by profession, trained in thermophysics. 

Two years ago, Olexander decided to change 

his line of work and to start a new life as a 

farmer. He began cultivating sweet corn, which 

is sold fresh, but is also suitable for canning or 

freezing. Olexander applied to ProCredit Bank, 

which was recommended to him by a friend, 

for a loan to buy seed and fertiliser in prepara-

tion for the sowing season, and received USD 

20,000. 

 “With the help of this additional working 

capital, I succeeded not only in increasing my 

output, but also in establishing my own brand, 

‘Mr. Gardener’, which is already well known not 

only in Odessa, but in other parts of the country 

as well. In the future I hope to grow new variet-

ies of sweet corn and to develop new markets 

for my products.” 

A quiet life in a rural setting 

 

 Serhiy started out as a food retailer in 

1996. Initially based in Donetsk, he later moved 

to the country village of Pervomayskoye be-

cause he wanted “a quieter and more peaceful 

life”. He first became aware of ProCredit Bank 

through a billboard in Donetsk. At that time, he 

needed to make some additional investments, 

and when he visited the bank he was impressed 

by the professionalism and competence of the 

employees, the speed and quality of the bank’s 

service, and the absence of red tape. Serhiy 

also found the bank’s credit analysis very help-

ful, as it enabled him to gain an even better 

understanding of his business. He took out his 

first loan in 2001 to purchase commercial refrig-

eration facilities and other equipment. In the 

meantime, he has built a new grocery store and 

a hardware store, and his staff has grown to 25. 

 

 “Especially in the rural areas of Ukraine, 

where unemployment is very high, investments 

like mine are highly visible and are greatly appre-

ciated by the community.”  In the future, Serhiy 

plans to build a motel complex for the many 

truck drivers passing through the village.
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Financial Statements
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended 31 December 2004 

   Note 2004 2003

 (in US dollars and in thousands)

 Interest income 4, 22 16,305 7,239

 Interest expense 4, 22 (5,380) (2,275)

 Net interest income before provision for loan losses 4 10,925 4,964

 Provision for loan losses 5 (1,023) (1,102)

 Net interest income  9,902 3,862

 Net gain on foreign exchange operations 6 558 541

 Fee and commission income 7 2,268 1,796

 Fee and commission expense  7, 22 (302) (264)

 Other income  171 85

 Net non-interest income  2,695 2,158

 Operating income  12,597 6,020  

 Operating expenses 8, 22 (10,448) (5,307)

 Profi t before other provisions and income tax  2,149 713

 Provision for losses on other transactions 5 (18) (12)

 Profi t before income tax  2,131 701

 Income tax expense 9 (602) (298)  

 Net profi t  1,529 403

The notes on pages 50 to 73 form an integral part of these fi nancial statements. The Independent Auditors’ Report is 

on page 45. 
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BALANCE SHEET
As of 31 December 2004 

   Note 2004 2003

 (in US dollars and in thousands) 

 Assets 

 Cash and balances with the National Bank of Ukraine 10 9,348 2,500

 Loans and advances to banks, less allowance for loan losses 11, 22 16,635 7,997

 Loans and advances to customers, less unamortised loan origination 

   fee and allowance for loan losses 12 98,368 57,423

 Income tax assets 9 500 668

 Tangible assets, less accumulated depreciation  13 7,797 3,024

 Intangible assets, less accumulated amortisation 14 481 226

 Other assets, less allowance for other losses 15 337 222

 Total assets  133,466 72,060

 

 Liabilities and shareholders' equity

 Liabilities

 Deposits from banks  16, 22 13,496 11,142

 Loans from international fi nancial organisations (“IFOs”) and 

   non-banking institutions, less unamortised loan origination fee 17, 22 58,658 31,892

 Customer accounts 18, 22 35,485 11,558

 Debt securities issued 19 8,843 2,300

 Income tax liabilities 9 96 –

 Other liabilities  155 43

 Total liabilities  116,733 56,935

 Shareholders' equity

 Share capital 20 14,137 14,067

 Share premium  147 146

 Retained earnings   2,449 912

 Total shareholders’ equity  16,733 15,125

 Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity  133,466 72,060

The notes on pages 50 to 73 form an integral part of these fi nancial statements. The Independent Auditors’ Report is 

on page 45. 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2004 

   Share  Share Retained  Total  

  (in US dollars and in thousands) capital  premium earnings  

 31 December 2002 8,941 146 510 9,597

 Share capital increase 5,124 – – 5,124

 Net profi t  – – 403 403

 Translation difference 2 – (1) 1

 31 December 2003 14,067 146 912 15,125

 Net profi t  – – 1,529 1,529

 Translation difference 70 1 8 79

 31 December 2004 14,137 147 2,449 16,733

The notes on pages 50 to 73 form an integral part of these fi nancial statements. The Independent Auditors’ Report is 

on page 45. 

48 P r o C r e d i t  B a n k  U k r a i n e        A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 0 4



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the year ended 31 December 2004 

   Note 2004 2003

 (in US dollars and in thousands) 

 Cash fl ows from operating activities

 Interest, fees and commissions received  19,352 9,344

 Interest, fees and commissions paid  (5,019) (2,158)

 Dealing in foreign currency, net  607 142

 Other operating income  166 85

 Salaries and salary related expenses  (4,102) (2,490)

 Other operating and administrative expenses  (4,876) (2,295)

 Operating profi t before changes in operating assets and liabilities  6,128 2,628

 Changes in operating assets and liabilities

 (Increase)/decrease in operating assets:    

 Amounts due from other banks  2,000 (5,639)

 Loans and advances to customers  (42,523) (33,214)

 Other assets  (108) (111)

 Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:    

 Amounts due to other banks  2,261 9,188

 Amounts due to customers  23,412 7,515

 Other liabilities  34 18

 Net cash outfl ow from operating activities before income taxes  (8,796) (19,615) 

 Income tax paid  (337) (825)

 Net cash outfl ow from operating activities  (9,133) (20,440)

 Cash fl ows from investing activities

 Cash received from sale of tangible assets  3 –

 Purchase of tangible assets  (6,067) (1,420)

 Purchase of intangible assets  (358) –

 Net cash outfl ow from investing activities  (6,422) (1,420)

 Cash fl ows from fi nancing activities

 Issue of share capital  – 5,124

 Long-term loans received from IFOs and non-banking institutions  26,486 15,919

 Debt securities issued  6,525 2,274

 Net cash infl ow from fi nancing activities  33,011 23,317

 Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  13 –

 Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  17,469 1,457

 Cash and cash equivalents, the beginning of the year 10 3,456 1,999

 Cash and cash equivalents, the end of the year 10 20,925 3,456

The notes on pages 50 to 73 form an integral part of these fi nancial statements. The Independent Auditors’ Report is 

on page 45.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2004 (in US dollars and in thousands)

1. Organization

ProCredit Bank (the “Bank”) was founded on 21  

December 2000 as a Closed Joint Stock Company under 

the laws of Ukraine. The Bank was registered by the 

National Bank of Ukraine (the “NBU”) on 28 Decem-

ber 2000. On 30 September 2003 the Bank changed 

its name from Micro Finance Bank to ProCredit Bank.   

Currently the Bank operates under a general license 

#195 granted by the NBU on 29 January 2001, which pro-

vides the Bank with the right to conduct banking opera-

tions, including currency operations.  The Bank’s prima-

ry business consists of providing universal services to 

private entrepreneurs and small and micro businesses. 

The Bank’s Head office and principal place of business 

is at 86, Bozhenka str., Kyiv.  As at 31 December 2004 

the Bank had 2 representative offices outside Kyiv – in 

Sumy and Gorlovka and 27 outlets: 1 outlet – in Krama-

torsk, Mariupol, Poltava, Bila Tserkva, Makyivka, Ivano 

Frankivsk, Zaporizhya, 2 outlets – in Odessa, Donetsk, 

Dnipropetrovsk, Lviv, 4 outlets in Kharkiv, and 8 out-

lets in Kyiv. As at 31 December 2003 the Bank had 9 

representative offices outside Kyiv – in Poltava, Sumy, 

Makyivka, Kramatorsk, Mariupol, Dnipropetrovsk, Bila 

Tserkva, Gorlovka, Ivano-Frankivsk and 10 outlets in: 

Odessa, Donetsk, 2 outlets in Lviv, 2 outlets in Kharkiv 

and 4 outlets in Kyiv.

The number of employees of the Bank at 31 December 

2004 and 2003 was 853 and 457, respectively. 

These financial statements were authorised for issue by 

the Management Board on 11 February 2005.

2. Basis of presentation

Accounting basis – The financial statements of the Bank 

have been prepared in accordance with International  

Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).  These financial 

statements are presented in thousands of United States 

dollars (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated. These  

financial statements are prepared on accrual basis under 

the historical cost convention, except for the financial  

instruments.  The Bank maintains its accounting records 

in accordance with Ukrainian accounting regulations 

applicable for banks.  These financial statements have 

been prepared from the Ukrainian statutory accounting 

records and have been adjusted to conform to IFRS. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity 

with IFRS requires management to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets 

and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 

liabilities at the date of the financial statements and  

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 

reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those 

estimates.  Estimates that are particularly susceptible to 

change relate to the provisions for losses on loans and 

impairment and the fair value of financial instruments.  

Measurement and presentation currency – For the pur-

pose of these financial statements the Bank separately 

identifies measurement and presentation currency in 

accordance with the requirements of SIC-19 “Reporting 

currency – Measurement and Presentation of Financial 

Statements under IAS 21 and IAS 29” issued by the 

Standing Interpretations Committee of the International 

Financial Reporting Standards Board.

Following the guidance to this interpretation, the Bank 

has determined that based on the economic substance 

of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to 

the Bank, the measurement currency for its transac-

tions should be the Ukrainian Hryvnia (“UAH”). This 

means that transactions in currencies other than the 

Ukrainian Hryvnia are treated as transactions in foreign 

currency.

At the request of the foreign shareholders of the Bank, 

who are the principal users of these financial state-

ments, the presentation currency is the US dollar.  

Balances at the reporting date, which initially have been 

measured in Ukrainian Hryvnia, are translated at the  

period-end exchange rate (at 31 December 2004 

– 5.3054 UAH/USD, and at 31 December 2003 – 5.3315 

UAH/USD) and transactions reported in the statement 

of operations are translated at the average monthly  

exchange rates.  All resulting differences are reported 

directly in shareholders’ equity as translation differ-

ence.

3. Significant accounting policies

Changes in accounting policy – In 2004 the Bank’s man-

agement decided to change the accounting policy for 

loan origination fees in order to provide reliable and 

more relevant information about the effects of transac-

tions, the financial position, financial performance and 

cash flows. 

Starting from January 2004 the loan origination fee is  

deferred and recognized as an adjustment to the loan’s 
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between the nominal amount of consideration given 

and the amortized cost of loans issued at other than 

market terms is recognized in the period the loan is  

issued as initial recognition adjustment discounting  

using market rates at inception and included in the 

profit and loss account. Loans to customers with fixed  

maturities are subsequently measured at amortized 

cost using the effective interest method.  Those that do 

not have fixed maturities are carried at cost.  Loans and 

advances to customers are carried net of allowance for 

loan losses.

Write off of loans – Loans are written off against allow-

ance for loan losses in case of uncollectibility of loans 

and advances, including through repossession of col-

lateral.  Loans may only be written off with the approval 

of the Board. 

Non-accrual loans – Loans are placed on non-accrual 

status when interest or principal is recognized as 

doubtful. Interest income is not recognized if recovery 

is doubtful. Subsequent payments by borrowers are 

applied to either principal or delinquent interest based 

on individual arrangements with the borrower. Non- 

accrual loans are restored to accrual status when all 

principal and interest amounts contractually due are 

reasonably assured of repayment within a reasonable 

period.

Allowance for losses – The Bank establishes an allow-

ance for losses on financial assets when it is prob-

able that the Bank will not be able to collect the prin-

cipal and interest according to the contractual terms of  

financial assets which are carried at cost or amor-

tized cost.  The allowance for losses is defined as the  

difference between carrying amounts and the present 

value of expected future cash flows, discounted at the 

original effective interest rate of the financial asset.

The determination of the allowance for loan losses is 

based on an analysis of the loan portfolio and reflects 

the amount which, in the judgment of management, 

is adequate to provide for losses inherent in the loan 

portfolio.  Provisions are made as a result of a detailed  

appraisal of risk assets.  

The change in the allowance for loan losses is charged 

to profit and the total of the allowance for loan losses 

is deducted in arriving at loans and advances to cus-

tomers and banks. Management‘s evaluation of the  

allowance is based on the Bank’s past loss experience, 

effective yield, according to IAS 39 “Financial instru-

ments: recognition and measurement”, while in prior 

periods they were recognized in the period when they 

were received.  Loan origination fees that are directly 

attributable to the acquisition of assets and related cost 

of issuing debt are included into amount originally rec-

ognized.  The effect of changes in the accounting policy 

on the previous accounting periods is not material.

Recognition and measurement of financial instruments – 

The Bank recognizes financial assets and liabilities on 

its balance sheet when, and only when, it becomes a 

party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.  

Regular way purchase and sale of the financial assets 

and liabilities are recognized using settlement date  

accounting. 

Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized 

at cost, which is the fair value of consideration given or 

received, respectively, including or net of any transac-

tion costs incurred, respectively.  The accounting poli-

cies for subsequent re-measurement of these items are 

disclosed in the respective accounting policies set out 

below. 

Cash and cash equivalents – Cash and cash equivalents 

include cash, unrestricted balances on correspondent 

accounts with the National Bank of Ukraine, advances 

to banks in countries included in the Organization for 

Economic Co-operation and Development (“OECD”), 

which may be converted to cash within a short period 

of time.  

Loans and advances to banks – In the normal course of 

business, the Bank maintains advances or deposits for 

various periods of time with other banks.  Loans and 

advances to banks with a fixed maturity term are sub- 

sequently measured at amortized cost using the  

effective interest method.  Those that do not have fixed 

maturities are carried at cost.  Amounts due from credit 

institutions are carried net of allowance for losses. 

Originated loans – Loans originated by the Bank are  

financial assets that are created by the Bank by provid-

ing money directly to a borrower or by participating in a 

loan facility, other than those that are originated with 

the intent to be sold immediately or in the short term, 

which are classified as trading investments. 

Loans granted by the Bank are initially recognized in  

accordance with the policy stated above. The difference 
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known and inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situ-

ations that may affect the borrower‘s ability to repay, 

the estimated value of any underlying collateral and 

current economic conditions. 

It should be understood that estimates of loan losses 

involve an exercise of judgment. While it is possible 

that in particular periods the Bank may sustain loss-

es which are substantial relative to the allowance for 

loan losses, it is the judgment of management that the 

allowance for loan losses is adequate to absorb losses 

inherent in the loan portfolio.

Tangible and intangible assets – Tangible assets and 

intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated 

depreciation and any recognized impairment loss.  

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of 

assets over their estimated useful lives, using the 

straight-line method, on the following bases (in years):

 Buildings 25

 Computer and equipment 3–5

 Furniture and fi ttings  5–7

 Computer software 5

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the life of 

the related leased asset.  Expenses related to repairs 

and renewals are charged when incurred and included 

in operating expenses unless they qualify for capital-

ization. Low-value assets (with a cost under UAH 1 

thousand) are fully depreciated when placed into op-

erations.

Impairment loss – If the recoverable amount of an asset 

is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount 

of the asset is reduced to its recoverable value. The 

difference, being an impairment loss, is recognized as 

an expense in the profi t and loss account for the year in 

which it arises.

Operating leases – Leases of assets under which the 

risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained 

with the lessor are classifi ed as operating leases. 

Bank as lessee – Lease payments under operating 

leases are recognized as expenses on a straight-line 

basis over the lease term and included into administra-

tive and operating expenses.  

Taxation – Income tax expense represents the sum of 

the current and deferred tax expense. 

The current tax expense is based on taxable profi t 

for the year. Taxable profi t differs from net profi t as 

reported in the profi t and loss account because it 

excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or 

deductible in other years and it further excludes items 

that are never taxable or deductible.  The Bank’s current 

tax expense is calculated using tax rates that have been 

enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recov-

erable on differences between the carrying amounts of 

assets and liabilities in the fi nancial statements and 

the corresponding tax bases used in the computation 

of taxable profi t, and is accounted for using the balance 

sheet liability method.  Deferred tax liabilities are gen-

erally recognised for all taxable temporary differences 

and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent 

that it is probable that taxable profi ts will be available 

against which deductible temporary differences can be 

utilised.  Such assets and liabilities are not recognised 

if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from 

the initial recognition (other than in a business com-

bination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction 

that affects neither the tax profi t nor the accounting 

profi t.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed 

at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent 

that it is no longer probable that suffi cient taxable prof-

its will be available to allow all or part of the asset to 

be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are 

expected to apply in the period when the liability is 

settled or the asset is realised.  Deferred tax is charged 

or credited in the profi t and loss account, except when it 

relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in 

which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deposits from banks, loans from IFOs and non-banking 

fi nancial institutions and customers – Customers' and 

bank deposits are initially recognized at cost, which 

amounts to the issue proceeds less transaction costs 

incurred. Subsequently amounts due are stated at am-

ortized cost and any difference between net proceeds 

and the redemption value is recognized in the profi t and 

loss account over the period of the borrowings using 

the effective interest method. 
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Debt securities issued – Debt securities issued represent 

bonds issued by the Bank to customers. The amount 

due is stated at nominal value and any difference 

between net proceeds and the redemption value is rec-

ognized in the profi t and loss account over the period of 

the borrowing using the effective interest method.

Provisions – Provisions are recognized when the Bank 

has a present legal or constructive obligation as a 

result of past events, and it is probable that an outfl ow 

of resources embodying economic benefi ts will be re-

quired to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of 

the obligation can be made. 

Share capital and share premium – Share capital and 

premium are recognized at historical cost. Share pre-

mium represents the excess of contributions over the 

nominal value of the shares issued.

Retirement and other benefi t obligations – The Bank 

does not have any pension arrangements separate 

from the State pension system of Ukraine, which re-

quires current contributions by employer calculated as 

a percentage of current gross salary payments; such 

expense is charged in the period the related salaries 

are earned. In addition, the Bank has no post-retire-

ment benefi ts or signifi cant other compensated ben-

efi ts requiring accrual.

Contingencies – Contingent liabilities are not recog-

nized in the fi nancial statements unless it is probable 

that an outfl ow of resources will be required to settle 

the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.  A 

contingent asset is not recognized in the fi nancial state-

ments but disclosed when an infl ow of economic ben-

efi ts is probable. 

Recognition of income and expense – Interest income 

and expense are recognized on an accrual basis calcu-

lated using the effective yield method.  The recognition 

of interest income is suspended when loans become 

doubtful. Commissions and other income are credited 

to income when the related transactions are completed.  

Loan origination fees are deferred and recognized as an 

adjustment to the loan’s effective yield. Non-interest 

expenses are recognized on an accrual basis. 

Foreign currency translation – Monetary assets and 

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are trans-

lated into Ukrainian Hryvnia at the appropriate spot 

rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date.  

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the 

exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction.  

Profi ts and losses arising from these translations are 

included in the net gain on foreign exchange transac-

tions.

Rates of exchange – The exchange rates at year-end 

used by the Bank in the preparation of the fi nancial 

statements are as follows:

   31 Dec 2004  31 Dec 2003

 UAH/USD 5.3054 5.3315

 UAH/EUR 7.2175 6.6622

Offset of fi nancial assets and liabilities – Financial 

assets and liabilities are offset and reported net on the 

balance sheet when the Bank has a legally enforceable 

right to set off the recognized amounts and the Bank 

intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the 

asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Reclassifi cations – Certain reclassifi cations and changes

in presentation have been made to the fi nancial state-

ment as of 31 December 2003 to conform to the presen-

tation as of 31 December 2004.

4. Net interest Income

  2004 2003

 Interest income

 Interest on loans and advances 

 to customers  16,112 6,915

 Interest on loans and advances 

 to banks 193 324

 Total interest income 16,305 7,239

 Interest expense

 Interest on customer accounts 1,738 595

 Interest on deposits from banks 861 411

 Interest on loans from 

 international fi nancial 

 organisations 2,008 1,126

 Interest on debt securities issued 773 143

 Total interest expense 5,380 2,275

    Net interest income before 

 provision for loan losses 10,925 4,964
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5. Allowance for loan losses and provisions

The movements in loan allowances are as follows:

The movements in the allowances and provisions on 

other transactions are as follows:

The allowances are deducted from the related assets.  

Provision for guarantees and other commitments is in-

cluded in other liabilities.

  Loans and advances Loans and advances Total

  to banks to customers   

 31 December 2002 20 861 881 

 provision 22 1,080 1,102

 write off of assets – (1) (1)

 translation difference (5) 5 –

 31 December 2003 37 1,945 1,982 

 provision 12 1,011 1,023

 write off of assets – (127) (127) 

 translation difference 1 10 11

 31 December 2004 50 2,839 2,889

  Other assets Guarantees Total

   and other commitments   

 31 December 2002 8 – 8 

 provision 12 – 12

 translation difference 1 – 1

 31 December 2003 21 – 21 

 provision 1 17 18

 translation difference 1 – 1

 31 December 2004 23 17 40
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6. Net gain on foreign exchange operations

Net gain on foreign exchange operations comprises:

  2004 2003

 Dealing, net  607 142

 Unrealised (loss)/gain on foreign 

 exchange, net  (49) 399

 Total net gain on foreign

 exchange operations 558 541

7. Fee and commission income and expense

Fee and commission income and expense comprises:

  2004 2003

 Fee and commission income

 Settlements and collection 1,318 828

 Loan operations 578 785

 Foreign exchange operations 305 173

 Other operations 67 10

 Total fee and commission income 2,268 1,796

 Fee and commission expense

 Settlements and collection 221 108

 Loan operations 36 130

 Operations with securities 45 22

 Other operations – 4

 Total fee and commission expense 302 264

The Bank changed its accounting policy regarding the 

loan origination fee. In 2003 it was recognized as fee 

and commission income/expense in the period when it 

was received. In 2004 loan origination fee is deferred 

and recognized as an adjustment to the loan’s effective 

yield.

8. Operating expenses

  2004 2003

 Employee compensation 3,152 1,932

 Depreciation and amortization 1,370 720

 Social security costs 948 558

 Marketing and advertising 938 505

 Operating lease expense 878 240

 Offi ce expenses 706 323

 Phone and communications 705 369

 Professional services fees 683 74

 Security 216 130

 Business travel and 

 representative expenses 212 104

 Taxes, other than income tax  205 5

 Repairs and maintenance expenses 157 129

 Other 278 218

 Total operating expenses 10,448 5,307

9. Income taxes

The Bank provides for taxes based on the statutory tax 

accounts maintained and prepared in accordance with 

the Ukrainian statutory tax regulations, which may dif-

fer from International Financial Reporting Standards.  

Tax assets and liabilities consist of the following:

  2004 2003

 Current tax assets – 598

 Deferred tax assets 500 70

 Income tax assets 500 668

 Current tax liabilities 96 –

 Deferred tax liabilities – –

 Income tax liabilities 96 –

The Bank is subject to certain permanent tax differ-

ences due to non-tax deductibility of exchange losses 

and other expenses and tax-free regime under local tax 

regulations. 

Deferred taxes refl ect the net tax effects of temporary 

differences between the carrying amounts of assets 

and liabilities for fi nancial reporting purposes and the 

amounts used for tax purposes.  Temporary differences 

as of 31 December 2004 and 2003 relate mostly to dif-

ferent methods of income and expense recognition as 

well as to recorded values of certain assets.  
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Temporary differences as of 31 December 2004 and 

2003 comprise:

  2004 2003

 Deductible differences

 Allowance for loan losses 587 –

 Tangible assets 634 335

 Interest expense accrued and 

 unamortized premium 344 142

 Loans to customers 119  

 Loan origination fee on loans 

 to customers 1,324  

 Other liabilities 67 13

 Total deductible differences 3,075 490

 Taxable differences

 Allowance for loan losses – 70

 Interest income accrued 977 122

 Loan origination fee on loans 

 received from international 

 fi nancial organisations 97 –

 Loans to customers – 18

 Total taxable differences 1,074 210

   Net deductible differences 2,001 280

 Deferred tax asset (at rate of 25%) 500 70

 Net deferred tax asset 500 70

Relationships between tax expenses and accounting 

profi t for the year ended 31 December 2004 and 2003 

are explained as follows: 

  2004 2003

 Profi t before income taxes  2,131 701 

 Statutory tax rate 25% 30%

 Theoretical tax at the statutory 

 tax rate  533 210

 Tax effect of permanent differences 69 51

 Effect of change in tax rate – 37

 Income tax expense  602 298

 Current income tax expense 1,032 147

 (Deferred tax benefi t)/deferred

 tax expense (430) 151

 Income tax expense  602 298

  2004 2003

 Deferred tax assets

 At beginning of the period 70 221

 Deferred tax benefi t/

 (deferred tax expense) 430 (151)

 At end of the period 500 70

10. Cash and balances with the National Bank of

 Ukraine

The balance with the National Bank of Ukraine as of 31 

December 2004 and 2003 includes USD 2,733 thousand 

and USD 1,378 thousand, respectively, which repre-

sents the minimum reserve deposits required by the 

NBU.  There are no restrictions on funds withdrawal from 

NBU; however, if minimum reserve requirements are 

not met, the Bank could be subject to certain penalties.  

Cash and cash equivalents as presented in the state-

ment of cash fl ows include the following:

  2004 2003 

 Cash on hand 2,839 1,009

 Correspondent account with 

 the NBU 6,509 1,491

 Total cash and balances with 

 the NBU 9,348 2,500

 Add advances to OECD banks 

 (included in Note 11) 11,577 956

 Total cash and cash equivalents 20,925 3,456
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11. Loans and advances to banks, less allowance for

 loan losses

  2004 2003

 Advances to banks 11,894 2,948

 Loans to banks 4,787 5,078

 Accrued interest income on 

 loans and advances to banks 4 8

  16,685 8,034

 Less allowance for loan losses (50) (37)

 Total loans and advances to 

 banks, less allowance for 

 loan losses 16,635 7,997

Movements in allowances for loan losses for the years 

ended 31 December 2004 and 2003 are disclosed in 

Note 5.

During 2004, the Bank simultaneously placed with and 

received short-term funds from Ukrainian banks in dif-

ferent currencies. As of 31 December 2004 and 2003, 

the Bank placed the equivalent of USD 4,787 thousand 

and USD 3,562 thousand as deposits and received de-

posits in the amount of USD 4,597 thousand and USD 

3,466 thousand, respectively. (see Note 16).

12. Loans and advances to customers, less unamor-

 tized loan origination fee and allowance for loan

 losses

Loans and advances to customers comprise:

  2004 2003

 Originated loans and advances 101,492 58,870

 Accrued interest income on loans

 and advances to customers 1,039 498

  102,531 59,368

 Unamortized loan origination fee (1,324) –

 Less allowance for loan losses (2,839) (1,945)

 Total loans and advances to 

 customers, less unamortised  

     loan origination fee and

 allowance for loan losses  98,368 57,423

Movements in allowances for loan losses for the years 

ended 31 December 2004/2003 are disclosed in Note 

5. As of 31 December 2004 loans and advances to cus-

tomers comprised USD 2,200 thousand in mortgage 

loans that were originated under the agreement with 

Western NIS Enterprise Fund. Under the terms of agree-

ment the Bank supports the mortgage lending program 

in Ukraine. The Bank does not bear credit risk on these 

loans. The loans will be transferred in full to the newly 

created mortgage bank after its registration. 

As of 31 December 2004 and 2003, included in loans 

and advances to customers were non-accrual loans 

amounting to USD 115 thousand and USD 158 thousand, 

respectively, on which interest was not accrued.

The above table summarizes the amount of loans 

secured by collateral, rather than the fair value of the 

collateral itself.

  2004 2003

 Loans collateralized by real estate 53,113 35,376

 Loans collateralized by transport facilities 17,284 12,319

 Loans collateralized by equipment 11,806 7,247

 Loans collateralized by guarantees 7,611 362

 Loans collateralized by personal belongings 3,816 1,529

 Loans collateralized by goods in turnover 3,718 752

 Loans collateralized by others 1,215 354

 Loans collateralized by property rights 315 242

 Unsecured loans 414 689

 Loans mortgage lending program 2,200 –

 Total originated loans and advances  101,492 58,870
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13. Tangible assets, less accumulated depreciation

  Buildings Computers Furniture Low Construction Total  

   and and value in  

   equipment fi ttings items progress   

 At cost 

 31 December 2003  1,779 1,668 297 363 96 4,203

 Additions 233 1,837 498 248 3,251 6,067

 Transfers 974 7 21 – (1,002) –

 Disposals (113) (34) (26) (82) – (255)

 Translation difference 13 15 2 2 7 39

 31 December 2004 2,886 3,493 792 531 2,352 10,054

 Accumulated depreciation 

 31 December 2003 168 612 36 363 – 1,179

 Depreciation expense 188 722 106 249 – 1,265

 Disposals (90) (18) (10) (77) – (195)

 Translation difference 4 (1) 9 (4) – 8

 31 December 2004 270 1,315 141 531 – 2,257

      

 Net book value 31 December 2004 2,616 2,178 651 – 2,352 7,797

 Net book value 31 December 2003  1,611 1,056 261 – 96 3,024

  2004 2003

 Analysis by industry

 Trade 52,811 31,323

 Industry and other production 15,141 9,499

 Services 14,499 9,114

 Transport and communications 10,931 6,287

 Construction 513 341

 Agriculture and food processing 436 330

 Other 4,392 1,603

 Individuals 569 373

 Loans mortgage lending program 2,200 –

 Total originated loans and advances  101,492 58,870
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14. Intangible assets, less accumulated amortization

  2004 2003

 At cost

 1 January  305 225

 Additions  358 79

 Translation difference 2 1

 31 December 665 305

 

 Accumulated amortization 

 1 January  79 32

 Amortization charge 105 47

 31 December  184 79

 Net book value 31 December  481 226

15. Other assets, less allowance for loan losses

Other assets were as follows at 31 December 2004 and 

2003: 

  2004 2003

 Prepaid expenses 183 19

 Prepayments for tangible and 

 intangible assets 147 197

 Other assets 30 27

  360 243

 Less allowance for losses  (23) (21)

 Total other assets, less

 allowance for loan losses 337 222

Movements in allowances for losses on other assets for 

the years ended 31 December 2004 and 2003 are dis-

closed in Note 5. 

16. Deposits from banks

Deposits from banks comprise:

  2004 2003

 Time deposits 13,430 11,114

 Accrued interest expense on 

 deposits from banks 66 28

 Total deposits from banks 13,496 11,142

During the year ended 31 December 2004 and 31 

December 2003, the Bank increased its borrowings 

from banks, entering into mutual placements agree-

ments with Ukrainian banks (see Note 11).

17. Loans from international fi nancial organisations 

 ("IFOs") and non-banking institutions, less unamor-

 tized loans origination fee

Loans from international fi nancial organisations were 

as follows at 31 December 2004 and 2003: 

  2004 2003

 European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (“EBRD”) 20,000 9,000

 International Finance Corporation (“IFC”) 10,000 3,500

 Black Sea Trade and Development Bank (“BSTDB”) 7,500 5,000

 Western NIS Enterprise Fund (“WNISEF”) 6,150 3,650

 Overseas Private Investment Corporation (“OPIC”) 5,000 –

 German-Ukrainian Fund (“GUF”) 4,625 5,416

 Kreditanstalt fur Wiederaufbau (“KfW”) 3,572 5,000

 Internationale Project Consult GmbH (“IPC”) 1,360 –

  58,207 31,566

 Accrued interest expense 754 326

 Less unamortized loan origination fee (303) –

 Total loans from international fi nancial organisations and  

 non-banking institutions, less unamortised loan origination fee 58,658 31,892
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As at 31 December 2004 the Bank had two credit lines 

with the EBRD in the amount of USD 4,000 thousand 

and USD 5,000 thousand, respectively. The Bank pays 

interest on these loans at LIBOR plus 4% and LIBOR plus 

3.25%, respectively. In September 2004 the Bank re-

ceived a structured loan from EBRD in the amount of USD 

11,000 at an interest rate of LIBOR plus 3.75% per an-

num.  The amounts mature in January 2005 – March 2011.

The Bank has also a credit line with the German-Ukrai-

nian Fund. The amounts due as of 31 December 2004 

include four agreements that mature in January 2005 

– July 2007. The loans bear an interest of EURIBOR plus 

1.5% per annum, which is payable quarterly.

As at 31 December 2004 the amount due to WNISEF com-

prised two loans: USD 2,500 thousand and USD 3,650 

thousand. The loans bear an interest of 8% and LIBOR 

plus 4% per annum, respectively.  The loans are due to 

be repaid in March 2005 – December 2007.

As at 31 December 2004 the principal amount due to 

BSTDB comprised USD 7,500 thousand. The loan is to 

be repaid in January 2007 – July 2007.  The loan bears 

an interest of LIBOR plus 3.5% per annum.

As at 31 December 2004 the amount due to KfW com-

prised USD 3,572 thousand. The loan should be repaid 

to June 2007 by fi ve equal instalments.  The loan bears 

an interest of LIBOR plus 4% per annum.

The Bank also received a loan from OPIC in the amount 

of USD 5,000 thousand. The loan matures in December 

2009 and bears an interest at US Treasury rate plus 

3.25% per annum.

The Bank also had loans from IFC in the amount of USD 

10,000 thousand at LIBOR plus 4% base interest rate. 

The loans are to be repaid in March 2005 – March 2009.

As at December 2004 the amount due to IPC compris-

es USD 1,360 thousand. The loan matures in February 

2005 and bears an interest of 6% per annum.

18. Customer accounts

  2004 2003

 Time deposits 25,507 7,627

 Repayable on demand 9,373 3,785

 Accrued interest expenses 

 on customer accounts 605 146

 Total customer accounts 35,485 11,558

  2004 2003

 Analysis by industry

 Services 5,107 2,592

 Trade 2,828 530

 Industry and other production 2,579 1,145

 Agriculture and food processing 289 14

 Transport and communications 226 130

 Construction 179 20

 Individuals 22,639 6,102

 Non-residents 623 616

 Other 410 263

 Accrued interest expenses on 

 customer accounts 605 146

 Total customer accounts 35,485 11,558

As of 31 December 2004 and 2003 customer accounts of 

USD 406 thousand and USD 1,959 thousand, respective-

ly, were held as guarantee against Bank’s operations.

19. Debt securities issued

Debt securities issued comprise:

  2004 2003

 Bonds 8,746 2,232

 Unamortized premium on debt 

 securities issued 12 22

 Accrued interest expense on debt 

 securities issued 85 46

 Total debt securities issued 8,843 2,300

For the year ended 31 December 2004 and 31 December 

2003 proceeds from debt securities issued were USD 

6,602 thousand and USD 2,274 thousand, represent-

ing a premium of USD 22 thousand and USD 42 thou-

sand, respectively.  During the year ended 31 December 

2004 the Bank repurchased own debt securities in the 
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  31 December 2004 31 December 2003 

  Nominal Risk  weighted Nominal Risk  weighted 

  amount amount amount amount  

 Contingent liabilities and credit commitments

 Guarantees issued and similar commitments 794 789 19 19

 Commitments on loans and unused credit lines 865 – 431 –

amount of USD 94 thousand. It is amortized over the life 

of the bonds and is recorded as a reduction of interest 

expense using the effective interest rate method. 

Bonds are denominated in Ukrainian Hryvnia bearing 

14% per annum interest rate.

20. Shareholder's equity

As of 31 December 2004 and 2003 share capital 

authorized, issued and fully paid comprised of 157,302 

ordinary shares, with par value of UAH 476.79 each.  All 

shares are ranked equally and carry one vote.  

The difference between the amount of share capital as 

reported in these fi nancial statements and those in the 

foundation documents is due to the change in the Hryv-

nia – US dollar exchange rate over the reporting period.

At 31 December 2004 the shareholders of the Bank 

were:

 Shareholder %

 European Bank for Reconstruction 

 and Development 20.0

 International Finance Corporation  20.0

 Western NIS Enterprise Fund 20.0

 Internationale Micro Investitionen AG 20.0

 Kreditanstalt fur Wiederaufbau (KfW) 20.0

 Total  100%

Subsequent to the year end, the shareholder Inter-

nationale Micro Investitionen AG changed its name to 

ProCredit Holding AG. 

21. Financial commitments and contingencies

In the normal course of business the Bank is a party 

to fi nancial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in 

order to meet the needs of its customers.  These instru-

ments, involving varying degrees of credit risk, are not 

refl ected in the balance sheet.

Accrued provision for losses on letters of credit and 

guarantees amounted to USD 16 thousand as of 31 

December 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The risk-weighted amount is obtained by applying credit

conversion factors and counter party risk weightings 

according to the principles employed by the Basle 

Committee on Banking Supervision.

As at 31 December 2004 and 2003, the nominal or con-

tract amounts and the risk weighted credit equivalents 

of instruments with off-balance sheet risks were:
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22. Related party transactions

Related parties, as defi ned by IAS 24 “Related Party 

Disclosure” are those counter-parties that represent: 

(a)  enterprises that directly, or indirectly through one 

or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by, 

or are under common control with, the reporting enter-

prise.  (This includes holding companies, subsidiaries 

and fellow subsidiaries); 

(b)  associates – enterprises in which the Bank has 

signifi cant infl uence and which is neither a subsidiary 

nor a joint venture of the investor; 

(c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an inter-

est in the voting power of the Bank that gives them 

signifi cant infl uence over the Bank; 

(d) key management personnel, that is, those persons 

having authority and responsibility for planning, direct-

ing and controlling the activities of the Bank, including 

directors and offi cers of the Bank and close members of 

the families of such individuals; and 

(e) enterprises in which a substantial interest in the 

voting power is owned, directly or indirectly, by any per-

son described in (c) or (d) or over which such a person 

is able to exercise signifi cant infl uence. This includes 

enterprises owned by directors or major shareholders 

of the Bank and enterprises that have a member of key 

management in common with the Bank. 

Operating leases – The Bank’s future minimum rental 

payments under non-cancelable operating leases of 

buildings in effect as of 31 December 2004 and 2003 

are presented in the table below. 

Legal proceedings – From time to time and in the nor-

mal course of business, claims against the Bank are 

received from customers and counterparties. Manage-

ment is of the opinion that no material unaccrued losses 

will be incurred and accordingly no provision has been 

made in these fi nancial statements.

Taxes – Due to the presence in Ukrainian commercial 

legislation, and tax legislation in particular, of provi-

sions allowing more than one interpretation, and also 

due to the practice developed in a generally unstable 

environment by the tax authorities of making arbitrary 

judgment of business activities, if a particular treat-

ment based on management’s judgment of the Bank’s 

business activities was to be challenged by the tax 

authorities, the Bank may be assessed additional taxes,

penalties and interest. The Bank believes that it has al-

ready made all tax payments, and therefore, no allow-

ance was made in the fi nancial statements. Tax years 

remain open to review by the tax authorities for three 

years.

Pensions and retirement plans – Employees receive 

pension benefi ts from Ukraine in accordance with the 

laws and regulations of the country. As of 31 December 

2004 and 2003, the Bank was not liable for any supple-

mentary pensions, post-retirement health care, insur-

ance benefi ts, or retirement indemnities to its current 

or former employees.

Operating environment – The Bank's principal business 

activities are within the Ukraine. Laws and regulations 

affecting the business environment in the Ukraine are 

subject to rapid changes and the Bank's assets and 

operations could be at risk due to negative changes in 

the political and business environment.

  31 December 2004 31 December 2003 

 Not later than 1 year 1,029 58

 Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 3,027 1,214

 More than 5 years 922 13

 Total operating lease 4,978 1,285
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In considering each possible related party relationship, 

attention is directed to the substance of the relation-

ship, and not merely the legal form.  The Bank had the 

following transactions outstanding with related parties:

                                                                     2004          2003

 Deposits to banks, gross 129 –

 Deposits from banks, including 

 accrued interest 5,849 3,112

 Customer accounts, including 

 accrued interest 145 16

 Loans from international 

 fi nancial organisations and 

 non-banking institutions,

 including accrued interest 41,646 26,805

 Other liabilities 14 –

During the years ended 31 December 2004 and 2003 

the Bank originated loans and advances to banks and 

customers – related parties amounting to USD 2,786 

thousand and USD 500 thousand, respectively, and 

repaid USD 2,663 thousand and USD 500 thousand, 

respectively. 

During the years ended 31 December 2004 and 2003 

the Bank received loans and advances from banks and 

customers - related parties of USD 19,641 thousand and 

USD 3,425 thousand, respectively, and repaid depos-

its and advances totaling USD 16,885 thousand and 

USD 322 thousand, respectively. The Bank had inter-

est expense accrued in respect of loans and advances 

received from related parties, totaling USD 27 thousand 

and USD 24 thousand as of 31 December 2004 and 31 

December 2003, respectively.

During the years ended 31 December 2004 and 2003 

the Bank received loans from international fi nancial 

organisations and non-banking institutions – related 

parties of USD 23,577 thousand and USD 10,000 thou-

sand, respectively. Accrued interest expense on loans 

from shareholders was totaling USD 565 thousand and 

USD 239 thousand as of 31 December 2004 and 2003 

respectively.  In 2004 the Bank repaid the loans to in-

ternational fi nancial organization in the amount of USD 

3,649 thousand. 

Included in the profi t and loss account for the years 

ended 31 December 2004 and 2003 are the following 

amounts which arose due to transactions with related 

parties:

  2004 2003

 Interest income – 1

 Interest expense 1,777 1,169

 Commission expense 25 80

 Operating expenses 490 –

Transactions with related parties entered by the Bank 

during the years ended 31 December 2004 and 2003 

and outstanding as of 31 December 2004 and 2003 were 

made in the normal course of business and under arm-

length conditions. 

23. Fair value of fi nancial instruments

 

Estimated fair value disclosures of fi nancial instru-

ments is made in accordance with the requirements of 

IAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presen-

tation” and IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition 

and Measurement”. Fair value is defi ned as the amount 

at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current 

transaction between knowledgeable willing parties in 

an arm’s length transaction, other than in forced or

liquidation sale. As no readily available market exists 

for a large part of the Bank’s fi nancial instruments, 

judgment is necessary in arriving at fair value, based on 

current economic conditions and specifi c risks attribut-

able to the instrument. The estimates presented herein 

are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Bank 

could realize in a market exchange from the sale of its 

full holdings of a particular instrument.

As of 31 December 2004 and 2003 the following meth-

ods and assumptions were used by the Bank to esti-

mate the fair value of each class of fi nancial instrument 

for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Cash and balances with the National Bank of Ukraine –

For these short-term instruments the carrying amount 

is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Loans and advances to banks – For these assets, the 

carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.
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 Capital amounts  For Capital Ratio for Capital Minimum  

 and ratios  Adequacy purposes Adequacy purposes Required Ratio

  Actual Amount in Amount in   

  USD thousands USD thousands

 At 31 December 2004    

 Total capital 16,733 18,128 16% 8%

 Tier 1 capital 16,733 16,733 15% 4%

 At 31 December 2003

 Total capital 15,125 15,894 25% 8%

 Tier 1 capital 15,125 15,125 24% 4%

Loans and advances to customers – The fair value of the 

loan portfolio is based on the credit and interest rate 

characteristics of the individual loans within each sec-

tor of the portfolio. The estimation of the provision for 

loan losses includes consideration of risk premiums 

applicable to various types of loans based on factors 

such as the current situation of the economic sector in 

which each borrower operates, the economic situation 

of each borrower and guarantees obtained. Accord-

ingly, the provision for loan losses is considered a rea-

sonable estimate of the discount required refl ecting the 

impact of credit risk.

Deposits from banks – The carrying amount of short 

term deposits is a reasonable estimate of their fair 

value.

Loans from international fi nancial organisations 

(“IFOs”) and non-banking institutions – The carrying 

amount of loans from IFOs and non-banking institutions 

is a reasonable estimate of its fair value.

Customer accounts – The carrying amount of time 

deposits and current accounts of the Bank’s customers 

is a reasonable estimate of their fair value.

Debt securities issued – The carrying amount of debt 

securities issued is a reasonable estimate of their fair 

value.

24. Regulatory matters

Quantitative measures established by regulations to 

ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to main-

tain minimum amounts and ratios (as set forth in the 

table below) of total and tier 1 capital to risk weighted 

assets.

Capital is calculated as the amount of restricted and 

free components of equity, plus the Bank’s provision 

for general banking risks, to the extent that the general 

provisions for loan losses do not exceed 1.25% of risk 

weighted assets.

The ratio was calculated according to the principles em-

ployed by the Basle Committee by applying the follow-

ing risk estimates to the assets and off-balance sheet 

commitments net of allowances for losses:

 Estimate Description of position

 0% Cash and balances with the National Bank  

  of Ukraine

 20% Loans and advances to banks for up to 

  1 year

 50% Obligations and commitments on 

  unused loans with the initial maturity 

  of over 1 year

 100% Loans to customers

 100% Guarantees

 100% Other assets

The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are pre-

sented in the following table:
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25. Risk management policies

Management of risk is fundamental to the banking busi-

ness and is an essential element of the Bank’s opera-

tions.  The main risks inherent to the Bank’s operations 

are those related to credit exposures, liquidity and  

market movements in interest rates and foreign ex-

change rates.  A description of the Bank’s risk manage-

ment policies in relation to those risks follows.

The Bank manages the following risks: 

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the availability of sufficient 

funds to meet deposit withdrawals and other financial 

commitments associated with financial instruments as 

they actually fall due.

In order to manage liquidity risk, the Bank performs 

monitoring of future expected cash flows on clients’ 

and banking operations, which is a part of assets/ 

liabilities management process.  The Bank’s Treasury 

department submits to the Management the liquidity 

analysis report.  The Bank’s Assets and Liabilities Com-

mittee performs weekly monitoring and analysis of  

liquidity risk. 

The Board sets limits on the minimum proportion of ma-

turing funds available to meet deposit withdrawals and 

on the minimum level on interbank and other borrowing 

facilities that should be in place to cover withdrawals at 

unexpected levels of demand.

The following table presents an analysis of interest rate 

risk and liquidity risk on the balance sheet.
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 2004 Up to 1 – 3 3 – 12 1 – 5 Over 5 Overdue Allowance Total 

  1 month months months years years  for losses

 Assets   

 Loans and advances to banks, less allowance for 

 loan losses 16,493 – – – – – (50) 16,443

 Loans and advances to customers, less unamortized 

 loan origination fee and allowance for loan losses 6,755 13,728 46,990 29,514 2,850 330 (2,806) 97,361

 Total interest earning assets 23,248 13,728 46,990 29,514 2,850 330 (2,856) 113,804

 Cash and balances with the National Bank of Ukraine 9,348 – – – – – – 9,348

 Loans and advances to banks less allowance for 

   loan losses 188 – – – – – – 188

 Accrued interest on loans and advances to banks 4 – – – – – – 4

 Accrued interest on loans and advances to customers 1,040 – – – – – (33) 1,007

 Income tax assets – – – 500 – – – 500

 Tangible assets, less accumulated depreciation – – – 5,181 2,616 – _ 7,797

 Intangible assets less accumulated amortization – – – 481 – – – 481

 Other assets, less allowance for other losses 360 – – – – – (23) 337

 Total assets 34,188 13,728 46,990 35,676 5,466 330 (2,912) 133,466

 Liabilities

 Deposits from banks 10,698 – 2,732 – – – – 13,430

 Loans from international fi nancial organisations  

   and non-banking institutions, less unamortized   

 loan origination fee 2,639 5,711 6,047 32,511 10,996 – – 57,904

 Customer accounts  6,517 5,914 13,473 2,292 175 – – 28,371

 Debt securities issued – – 2,154 6,604 – – – 8,758

 Total interest bearing liabilities 19,854 11,625 24,406 41,407 11,171 – – 108,463

 Customer accounts 6,509 – – – – – – 6,509

 Accrued interest on deposits from banks 66 – – – – – – 66

 Accrued interest on customer accounts 605 – – – – – – 605

 Accrued interest on loans from international 

   fi nancial organisations 412 185 157 – – – – 754

 Accrued interest on debt securities issued 31 54 – – – – – 85

 Income tax liabilities 96 – – – – – – 96

 Other liabilities 155 – – – – – – 155

 Total liabilities 27,728 11,864 24,563 41,407 11,171 – – 116,733

 Liquidity gap 6,460 1,864 22,427 (5,731) (5,705)    

 Interest sensitivity gap 3,394 2,103 22,584 (11,893) (8,321)    

 Cumulative interest sensitivity gap 3,394 5,497 28,081 16,188 7,867

 Cumulative interest sensitivity gap as

   a percentage of total assets 2.5% 4.1% 21.0% 12.1% 5.9% 
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 2003 Up to 1 – 3 3 – 12 1 – 5 Over 5 Overdue Allowance Total 

  1 month months months years years  for losses

 Assets   

 Loans and advances to banks, less allowance for 

  loan losses 6,698 1,138 – – – – (37) 7,799

 Loans and advances to customers, less unamortized

 loan origination fee and allowance for loan losses 5,099 8,158 27,483 17,972 – 158 (1,941) 56,929

 Total interest earning assets 11,797 9,296 27,483 17,972 – 158 (1,978) 64,728

 Cash and balances with the National Bank of Ukraine 2,500 – – – – – – 2,500

 Loans and advances to banks less allowance for 

 loan losses 190 – – – – – – 190

 Accrued interest on loans and advances to banks 8 – – – – – – 8

 Accrued interest on loans and advances to customers 498 – – – – – (4) 494

 Income tax assets – – – 668 – – – 668

 Tangible assets, less accumulated depreciation – – – 1,413 1,611 – – 3,024

 Intangible assets less accumulated amortization – – – 226 - – – 226

 Other assets, less allowance for other losses 8 – 25 210 - – (21) 222

 Total assets 15,001 9,296 27,508 20,489 1,611 158 (2,003) 72,060

 Liabilities

 Deposits from banks 5,088 3,038 2,988 – – – – 11,114

 Loans from internationalfi nancial organisations 

 and non-banking institutions, less unamortized 

 loan origination fee – – 2,817 28,749 – – – 31,566

 Customer accounts  1,021 1,202 3,665 1,739 – – – 7,627

 Debt securities issued – – 2,254 – – – – 2,254

 Total interest bearing liabilities 6,109 4,240 11,724 30,488 – – – 52,561

 Customer accounts 3,785 – – – – – – 3,785

 Accrued interest on deposits from banks 4 – 24 – – – – 28

 Accrued interest on customer accounts 146 – – – – – – 146

 Accrued interest on loans from international 

 fi nancial organisations 219 101 6 – – – – 326

 Accrued interest on debt securities issued 46 – – – – – – 46

 Other liabilities 7 5 31 – – – – 43

 Total liabilities 10,316 4,346 11,785 30,488 – – – 56,935

 Liquidity gap 4,685 4,950 15,723 (9,999) 1,611    

 Interest sensitivity gap 5,688 5,056 15,759 (12,516) –    

 Cumulative interest sensitivity gap 5,688 10,744 26,503 13,987 13,987

 Cumulative interest sensitivity gap as 

   a percentage of total assets 7.9% 14.9% 36.8% 19.4% 19.4%

 

liquidity and its susceptibility to fl uctuation of interest 

rates and exchange rate.

Asset and liability maturity periods and the ability to 

replace interest liabilities at an acceptable cost when 

they mature are crucial in determining the Bank’s 
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The majority of the Bank’s loan contracts and other fi-

nancial assets and liabilities that bear interest are either 

variable or contain clauses enabling the interest rate to 

be changed at the opinion of the lender. The Bank moni-

tors its interest rate margin and consequently does not 

consider itself exposed to significant interest rate risk 

or consequential cash flow risk.   

The following table presents an analysis of interest rate 

risk and thus the potential of the Bank for gain or loss.  

Effective interest rates are presented by categories of 

financial assets and liabilities to determine the interest 

rate exposure and the effectiveness of the interest rate 

policy used by the Bank. 

Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that chang-

es in interest rates will affect the value of the financial 

instruments.  

The Bank’s interest rate policy is reviewed and ap-

proved by the Bank’s Assets and Liabilities Committee.  

The Bank manages its interest rate exposures in line 

with the key indicators and assumptions made by the 

Assets and Liabilities Committee. 

The Bank’s accounting software is used as a reporting 

tool to ensure that the potential risk is identified.  The 

Treasury department produces a weekly interest gap 

report that is compared to the limits set.  Any excess is 

communicated to the Bank’s Board. 

68 P r o C r e d i t  B a n k  U k r a i n e        A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 0 4



     2004    2003

     Other    Other 

  UAH USD EUR currencies UAH USD EUR currencies

 Assets   

 Loans and advances to banks, less allowance for 

   loan losses – 1.23% 1.57% – – 6.07% 7.01% –

 Loans and advances to customers, less unamortized 

 loan origination fee and allowance for loan losses 28.98% 17.45% 15.45% 20% 22.61% 14.58% 16.04% 18%

 Liabilities

 Deposits from banks 17.81% 5.16% 4.47% – 14.29% 2.15% 6.03% –

 Customer accounts 8.65% 6.21% 6.39% – 14.36% 7.49% 6.80% –

 Loans from international  fi nancial organisations 

 and non-banking institutions, less unamortized

 loan origination fee – 6.03% 4.19% – – 4.93% 3.63% –

 Debt securities issued 13.84% – – – 14.00% – – –
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 2004   Instruments  Instruments Non- Allowance Total 

    linked to  linked to convertible for losses  

  UAH EUR EUR USD USD currencies   

 Assets   

 Cash and balances with the National Bank           

   of Ukraine 8,042 295 – 1,005 – 6 _ 9,348

 Loans and advances to banks, less

   allowance for loan losses 61 7,875 – 8,687 – 62 (50) 16,635

 Loans and advances to customers, less

   unamortized loan origination fee and

   allowance for loan losses 24,887 3,117 29 70,128 3,043 3 (2,839) 98,368

 Income tax assets 500 – – – – – – 500

 Tangible assets, less accumulated depreciation 7,797 – – – – – – 7,797

 Intangible assets less accumulated amortization 481 – – – – – – 481

 Other assets, less allowance for other losses 360 – – – – – (23) 337

 Total assets 42,128 11,287 29 79,820 3,043 71 (2,912) 133,466

 Liabilities

 Deposits from banks 4,007 1,232 – 8,257 _ _ _ 13,496

 Loans from international fi nancial organisations

 and non-banking institutions,  

 less unamortized loan origination fee – 5,990 – 52,668 – – – 58,658

 Customer accounts 16,326 3,956 – 15,161 – 42 – 35,485

 Debt securities issued 8,843 – – _ – – – 8,843

 Income tax liabilities 96 – – _ – – – 96

 Other liabilities 121 19 – 15 – – – 155

 Total liabilities 29,393 11,197 – 76,101 – 42 – 116,733

 

 Net position 12,735 90 29 3,719 3,043 29

Currency risk

Currency risk is defi ned as the risk that the value of a 

fi nancial instrument will fl uctuate due to changes in for-

eign exchange rates.  The Bank is exposed to effects of 

fl uctuation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange 

rates on its fi nancial position and cash fl ows.  

The Management Board sets limits on the level of expo-

sure by currencies (primarily US dollar and EUR).  The 

Bank’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk 

is presented in the table below: 
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 2003   Instruments  Instruments Non- Allowance Total 

    linked to  linked to convertible for losses  

  UAH EUR EUR USD USD currencies   

 Assets   

 Cash and balances with the National Bank           

   of Ukraine 1,907 70 – 523 – – – 2,500

   Loans and advances to banks, less 

   allowance for loan losses 44 3,852 – 4,127 – 11 (37) 7,997

 Loans and advances to customers, less

   unamortized loan origination fee and

   allowance for loan losses 7,492 3,260 338 39,724 8,552 2 (1,945) 57,423

 Income tax assets 668 – – – – – – 668

 Tangible assets, less accumulated depreciation 3,024 – – – – – – 3,024

 Intangible assets less accumulated amortization 226 – – – – – – 226

 Other assets, less allowance for other losses 243 – – – – – (21) 222

 Total assets 13,604 7,182 338 44,374 8,552 13 (2,003) 72,060

 Liabilities

 Deposits from banks 3,064 587 – 7,491 – – – 11,142

 Loans from international fi nancial organisations 

   and non-banking institutions, 

   less unamortized loan origination fee – 5,417 – 26,475 – – – 31,892

 Customer accounts 6,936 904 – 3,718 – – – 11,558

 Debt securities issued 2,300 – – – – – – 2,300

 Other liabilities 42 – – 1 – – – 43

 Total liabilities 12,342 6,908 – 37,685 – – – 56,935 

 Net position 1,262 274 338 6,689 8,552 13

Credit risk 

The Bank is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that 

one party will fail to discharge an obligation and cause 

the other party to incur a fi nancial loss.  

The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it under-

takes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted 

in relation to one borrower, or groups of borrowers, and 

to a region. Limits on the level of credit risk by borrower 

and by region are set by the risk manager and approved 

every half-year by the Board. Actual exposures against 

limits are monitored daily.

For the majority of loans the Bank obtains collateral, 

corporate and personal guarantees, but a signifi cant 

portion of loans is granted to sole traders and individu-

als, where the inherent risk of the safety of collateral is 

high. Such risks are monitored on a continuous basis 

and are subject to quarterly or more frequent reviews.  

Commitments to extend credit represent unused por-

tions of credit in the form of loans, guarantees or letters 

of credit. The credit risk on off-balance sheet fi nancial 

instruments is defi ned as a probability of losses due to 

the inability of the counterparty to comply with the con-

tractual terms and conditions.  

The Bank applies the same credit policy to the contin-

gent liabilities as it does to the balance sheet fi nancial 

instruments, i.e. one based on the procedures for ap-

proving the grant of loans, using limits to mitigate the 

risk, and current monitoring. The Bank monitors the 

term to maturity of credit commitments because longer 

term commitments generally have a greater degree of 

credit risk than shorter-term commitments. 
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 2004  Other   Other   

   CIS OECD non-OECD Allowance  

  Ukraine countries countries countries for losses Total 

 Cash and balances with the National Bank 

 of Ukraine 9,348 – – – – 9,348

 Loans and advances to banks, less 

 allowance for loan losses 4,917 62 11,577 129 (50) 16,635

 Loans and advances to customers, less

   unamortized loan origination fee and

   allowance for loan losses 101,207 – – – (2,839) 98,368

 Income tax assets 500 – – – – 500

 Tangible assets, less accumulated 

 depreciation 7,797 – – – – 7,797

 Intangible assets less accumulated 

 amortization 481 – – – – 481

 Other assets, less allowance for other losses 360 – – – (23) 337

 Total Assets 124,610 62 11,577 129 (2,912) 133,466

 Liabilities 

 Deposits from banks 7,647 – – 5,849 – 13,496

 Loans from international fi nancial 

   organisations and non-banking institutions, 

 less unamortized loan origination fee – – 58,658 – – 58,658

 Customer accounts 35,485 – – – – 35,485

 Debt securities issued 8,843 – – – – 8,843

 Income tax liabilities 96 – – – – 96

 Other liabilities 138 – – – 17 155 

 Total Liabilities 52,209 – 58,658 5,849 17 116,733

        

 Net position 72,401 62 (47,081) (5,720)    

   

Geographical concentration

The geographical concentration of assets and liabilities 

is set out below:

72 P r o C r e d i t  B a n k  U k r a i n e        A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 0 4



 2003  Other   Other   

   CIS OECD non-OECD Allowance  

  Ukraine countries countries countries for losses Total 

 Cash and balances with the National Bank 

 of Ukraine 2,500 – – – – 2,500

 Loans and advances to banks, less 

 allowance for loan losses 7,067 11 956 – (37) 7,997

 Loans and advances to customers, less

   unamortized loan origination fee and

   allowance for loan losses 59,368 – – – (1,945) 57,423

 Income tax assets 668 – – – – 668

 Tangible assets, less accumulated 

 depreciation 3,024 – – – – 3,024  

 Intangible assets less accumulated 

 amortization 226 – – – – 226 

 Other assets, less allowance for other losses 243 – – – (21) 222

 Total Assets 73,096 11 956 – (2,003) 72,060

 Liabilities 

 Deposits from banks 8,030 – – 3,112 – 11,142 

 Loans from international fi nancial 

   organisations and non-banking institutions, 

 less unamortized loan origination fee – – 31,892 – – 31,892

 Customer accounts 11,558 – – – – 11,558

 Debt securities issued 2,300 – – – – 2,300  

 Other liabilities 43 – – – – 43 

 Total Liabilities 21,931 – 31,892 3,112 – 56,935  

      

 Net position 51,165 11 (30,936) (3,112)    
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Head Office

Kyiv 
86 Bozhenka Str., Kyiv 03150
Tel.: (044) 490 60 80
Fax: (044) 490 60 81
info@procreditbank.com.ua

Branches

Kyiv 1
12-A Zolotoustivska Str., Kyiv 01135
Tel.: (044) 569 30 72
Fax: (044) 569 30 73 
info@procreditbank.com.ua

Kyiv 3
24a H. Stalingrada Str., Kyiv 04210 
Tel.: (044) 201 41 80 
Fax: (044) 201 41 48 
info@procreditbank.com.ua

Kyiv 4
26 Bazhana Av., Kyiv 02121
Tel.: (044) 201 41 49 (-50)
info@procreditbank.com.ua 

Kyiv 5
86 Bozhenka Str., Kyiv 03150
Tel.: (044) 490 60 40
Fax: (044) 490 60 41
info@procreditbank.com.ua 

Kyiv 6
103 Pobedy Av., Kyiv 03115
Tel.: (044) 424 99 98
Fax: (044) 424 99 96
info@procreditbank.com.ua 

Kyiv 7
2A Kharkovskoe shosse, Kyiv 02160 
Tel.: (044) 559 02 22 
Fax: (044) 559 18 00 
info@procreditbank.com.ua 

Kyiv 8
24 Chervonoarmiyska Str., Kyiv 01004
Tel.: (044) 538 03 00 
Tel./Fax:  (044) 538 03 01
info@procreditbank.com.ua 

Bila Tserkva 
15 Blvd. 50-letiia Pobedy, Bila Tserkva 09117
Tel.: (04463) 444 19
Fax: (04463) 444 21
bila_tserkva@bel.com.ua

Dnipropetrovsk 1
4a Karla Libknechta Str., Dnipropetrovsk 49000
Tel.: (056) 770 77 10 
Fax: (056) 770 77 10  
info@dnepr.procreditbank.com.ua

Dnipropetrovsk 2
12 Pravda Av., Dnipropetrovsk 49081 
Tel.: (0562) 349 222
Tel.: (056) 725 06 10
info@dnepr.procreditbank.com.ua

Donetsk 1
34 Chervonoarmiyska Str., Donetsk 83086
Tel.: (062) 345 32 00 (-11)
Fax: (062) 345 32 06 (-09)
pcb@donetsk.procreditbank.com.ua

Donetsk 2
23 Blvd. Pushkina, Donetsk 83055
Tel.: (062) 348 36 00 
Fax: (062) 348 36 06 
pcb@donetsk.procreditbank.com.ua 

Ivano-Frankivsk
11 Sichovykh  Striltsiv Str., Ivano-Frankivsk  76000
Tel.: (0342) 775 858 
Fax: (0342) 775 858 
procreditbank@neonet.if.ua

Kharkiv 1
37 Petrovskogo  Str., Kharkiv 61024
Tel.: (057) 719 27 91, 719 27 92 
Fax: (057) 719 27 93 
bank@kharkiv.procreditbank.com.ua

Kharkiv 2
2/15 K. Marks Str., Kharkiv 61012
Tel.: (0572) 28 94 28
Fax: (0572) 28 94 39
bank@kharkiv.procreditbank.com.ua

Contact Addresses
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Kharkiv 3
13/2 Kooperatyvna Str., Kharkiv 61003
Tel.: (057) 719 18 73,717 67 77 
Fax: (057) 717 61 44 
bank@kharkiv.procreditbank.com.ua

Kharkiv 4
32/20  23  Avgusta Str., Kharkiv 61072
Tel.: (057) 703 40 5, 703 40 50 
Fax: (057) 703 40 54 
bank@kharkiv.procreditbank.com.ua

Kramatorsk
38 Sotsialistychna Str., Kramatorsk 84300
Tel.: (0626) 414 764 
Fax: (0626)414 787 
procreditbank@krm.dn.ua

Lviv 1
33 Gorodotska Str., Lviv 79007
Tel.: (0322) 987 350 
Fax: (0322) 987 340 
offi ce@lviv.procreditbank.com.ua

Lviv 2
3 Basarab Str., Lviv 79017
Tel.: (0322) 97 72 59  
Fax:  (0322) 98 78 30 
offi ce@lviv.procreditbank.com.ua

Makiivka
49/17 Lenina Str., Makiivka 86157 
Tel.: (0623) 22 07 64 
Fax: (0623) 22 07 67
procreditbank@icm.dn.ua

Mariupol
77 Metalurgiv Av., Mariupol 87539
Tel.: (0629) 41 28 04
Fax: (0629) 41 28 05
procreditbank@mp.farlep.net

Odesa 1
121 V. Arnautska Str., Odesa 65007
Tel.: (048) 210 720  
Fax: (048) 210 728  
credit@odessa.procreditbank.com.ua

Odesa 2
33 Bunina Str., Odesa 65045
Tel.: (0482) 210 772, (0482) 210 775, (0482) 329 244 
credit@odessa.procreditbank.com.ua

Poltava
19/10 Kotliarevskogo Str., Poltava 36000
Tel.: (0532) 503 696 
Fax: (0532) 506 203 
offi ce@pl.procreditbank.com.ua

Zaporizhia
62  Lenina Av., Zaporizhia 69063
Tel.: (061) 220 41 91
Fax: (061) 220 41 92
info@zp.procreditbank.com.ua

Representative Offi ces

Horlivka
76 Rudakova Str., Horlivka 84646
Tel.: (06242) 221 64
Fax: (06242) 251 89 
procreditbank@ghost.dn.ua

Slavutich
2 Heroiv Dnipra Str., Slavutich
Tel.:/Fax: (04479) 249 05
Slavutich@procreditbank.com.ua

Sumy
6 Kirova Str., Sumy 40030 
Tel.: (042) 21 44 51 
Fax: (0542) 21 44 59 
procreditbank@vcity.sumy.ua
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